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Directors’ report

The Directors' present thetr report and the audited financial statements of Ocado Limited (the *Company”) for the
52 weeks ended 28 November 2010

Principal activities

Ocado Limited 1s a pnvate imited company incoerporated and registered in England and Wales under the Companies
Act 2006 with registered number 03875000 Its registered office 1s Titan Court, 3 Bishops Square, Hatfield Business
Park, Hatfield, Hertfordsture AL10 9NE

Ocado Holdings Limited 1s the sole shareholder of the Company The ultimate parent company 1s Qcado Group ple
and, together with the Company and the direct and indirect subsidianes of Qcado Group plg, form the “Group” The
principal activities of the Company are the retailing and distnbution of grocery and consumer goods

The Company currently cperates out of a dedicated Customer Fulfilment Centre (“CFC") based at a site in Hatfield,
Hertfordshire, together with eight gperational Spokes based in Coventry, Dartford, Manchester, Leeds, Southampton,
Weybndge and White City as well as Bristo! (which started operating after the end of the penod)

Business review

The Companies Act requires the Company to set out in this annual report a farr review of the business of the
Company dunng the 52 weeks ended 28 November 2010, including an analysis of the position of the Company at the
end of the pertod, and a descrnipticn of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties facing the Company (known as the
“business review”) The information that fulfils the business review requirements 1s set out in this Directors’ report

Introduction

The past year has been a year of significant progress for Ocado |n the core operations we delivered a strong set of
results for 2010 Our strategy of continuously improving our market leading customer offer continued to drive sales
growth which has delivered through to the bottorn line This was a tremendous achievement by all the members of
the Ocado team

Delivenng gross sales growth of 28% ta £551 1 million against the backdrop of a weak UK economy I1s a strong
result As the business grows and starts to achieve scale we are seeing the benefits of considerable operational
leverage

The UK online grocery market i1s shll at an early stage of development We believe the most effective way Ocado can
increase adoption I1s to continue improving our customer offering As in previous years, we have worked hard to
improve this on many levels, including working on range, price, availability, accuracy, ease of use as well as other
service Initiatives

Range

This year we expanded our range to 21,500 SKUSs from 20,500 at the end of FYQ9, all of which are available to
customers In the whole of our delivery geography To put this in context, we have now taken our range from being
among the smallest offered in any UK supermarket three years ago to one of the largest ranges today As we expand
the capacity of the CFC further we expect to be able to offer the largest grocery range of any major UK supermarket

Ocado own-label .

A particularly important addiion to our range this year has been the launch of the Ocado own-label range, which has
been introduced to complement the Waitrose own-label products It offers the Ocado customer a range that matches
closely in price and quality the core own-label ranges of the major UK supermarkets [t has been a great achievement
to build the team and the supphlier relationships necessary to source and develop the Ocado own-label range While it
15 still early days we have seen strong take-up with 64% of all baskets contaiming an Ocado product in the final four
week perod of the year The Ocado own-label range now has over 250 products and we expect this to grow
substantially in the coming years

Pricing

The launch of the Ocado range touches on another key area where we have improved this year, pnoing We have
continued to invest in our pnce positioning over the year through beth range and absolute pnicing Due to our
increasing scale we managed to maintan margin while making these investments in price We continued our
commitment to match the standard pnces of all identical items of the UK's largest supermarket group As we have
expanded our range, we have increased the number of Tesco Price Match items to about 7,200 We also launched
“Switch and Save” which allows our customers to move to lower priced products with improved vatue as they check
out This year we have run more promotions than ever before, increasing the value of our service to our customers
The investments made in pncing over recent years have been recognised by the consumer and have led to a
broadening of our customer base from a demographic perspective
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Directors’ report (continued)

Ocado webshop

We also made substanhtal improvements this year to our customer interfaces with the aim of providing the customer
with the best possible experience in enline grocery shopping regardless of how they want to interact wath Ocado,
whether on the website, mobile phone or 1Pad This year we also upgraded the website and iIPhone app and
launched apps on the \Pad and Android mobile devices with mobile checkouts reaching 12% since the New Year

In November we launched the new version of the Ccado website This has been a major operation involving teams
across the bustness from trading through to creative to IT We have had a positive reaction from our customers and
its mtroduction has dniven an increased average spend per order Beyond the improved customer interface the new
website provides a new back end platform which will allow us to continue to innovate over the coming years

Awards

Ocado received numerous industry awards for its customer offer, including World Etailer of the Year 2010 at the
Oracle World Retall Awards However, we are not resting on our laurels and there are many customer offer
developments planned for the corming year

The customer offer improvements have led to both a significant increase 1n new customers using the service and an
increase in spend per customer Average orders per week increased from 70,873 in FY09 t0 92,916 1n FY10, and
exceeded 100,000 for the first ime in the week commencing 10 May 2010 As expected, average order size showed
a slight decrease to £114 06 for the year This 1s due to changing customer behaviour with customers continuing to
increase their frequency of shop but with a shight decline in order size We are pleased to note that we have seen the
rate of declhne slow over the course of the year

CFC

Significant effort was also spent over the year on the behind the scenes projects which enable us to deliver capacity
growth and customer offer improvements These occurred in all areas of the business affecting processes, software
and hardware For example in the CFC one of the major projects was the addition of three new chill aisles This
enabled the termination of the relatively inefficent process of trolley picking for chilled goods On the software side
over 1,500 indwvidual changes were made to our CFC systems

Increasing the scate of the business at this rate presents operational challenges The CFC capactty grew in ine with
expectations with a shght impact on productivity gains We reintroduced a number of processes, such as trolley
picking, to help cope with increased demand This impacted CFC efficiency with units per hour ("UPH") decreasing by
2 2% to 121 UPH As our planned capital spend I1s invested in the CFC over the coming years, we expect productivity
to nse substantially and the long-term target of 180 UPH rematns in place At 99% for the year, the accuracy of our
offer remained at a level we believe is significantly higher than our competitors This 1s shghtfy down on last year and
we expect the capital projects planned for the CFC will improve this

Deliveries

On the delivery side of the business the progress towards the long-term target 1s more linear and we have seen
significant improvement this year The increasing scale combined with upgrades to the routing software and vans
has led to drops per van per week (“DPV/wk™) increasing by 10% to 133 In the most productive week of the year we
achieved 159 DPV/wk (compared to our long-term target of 175 DPV/wk)

Other events

Qutside the core operations, this has been a significant year for the business Three major events occurred that are
the building blocks for the long-term success of the business In May 2010, we signed a new ten year agreement with
Waitrose We were delghted to sign this agreement which 1s our fifth and longest contract with Waitrose This
ensures that we will continue our relationship, which is now in its eleventh year In July 2010, Ocado Group plc, the
Company’s ultmate parent company, listed on the London Stock Exchange This has many benefits for the Group
and the shareholders but the pnmary benefit was to raise significant funds These will be used to fund the capital
projects required to serve the demand we expect to see in the online grocery market In Qctober 2010, the
Company's parent reached agreement to purchase the site for a second Customer Fulfiment Centre {*CFC2") in
Dordon, Warwickshire This 1s the most substantial capital project in the plan to more than tnple the capacrty of the
business from 2009 to 2013
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Directors’ report (continued)

Financial results overview

The results for the penod ended 28 November 2010 have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

Revenue

Gross sales were up 29% to £551 1 million for the year The growth was dnven by a substantial increase in orders
per week, offset by a shight decrease in average order size The number of active customers increased by 19% to
262,258 at the end of FY10, with average weekly new customers up by 37% to 2,948 There was minimai geographic
expansion dunng the year Revenue grew by 28% to £515 7 milion  Spend on marketing vouchers remained broadly
flat at 1 5% of sales, increasing by 25% to £8 1 million which was slightly less than the rate of growth in gross sales

Gross profit

Gross profit increased 32% to £161 6 millon This equates to a 58 basis point increase In gross margin over the
penod to 29 3% This was driven by positive changes in mput prices, retail price inflation, supplier support and
changes in product mix as well as the effects of the increasing scale of the business Over the penod the average
price of items sold increased by 0 8%

Other income increased by 136% to £6 2 millon This was pnmanly driven by a 161% nse in marketing revenue The
increased space on the new website launched at the end of the year has provided us with further opportuniies to
generate additional marketing revenue

Operating costs

Distnbution costs increased by 20% to £132 8 million This increase was slower than sales growth demonstrating the
developing operating leverage of the business Distnbution costs decreased as a percentage of sales from 26% to
24% The two major components of distnbution costs are CFC costs and trunking and delivery costs CFC costs
increased by 17% Vanable CFC costs increased broadly in ine with revenue due to imited preductivity gains
However, the operating leverage of the fixed cost base on increased volume meant that total CFC costs continued to
fall as a percentage of revenue Trunking and delivery costs increased by 23% with productivity gains more than
offsetting inflationary pressures Administrative expenses increased by 25% to £36 8 millon The main drivers of
these cost increases were additional employment costs and associated infrastructure

Operating profitloss
Operating loss pre-exceptionals for the full year improved from £14 4 milhion in 2009 to £1 7 mifhion in 2010 This was
prmanly due to the growth in revenue that enabled greater operating efficiencies, as highlighted above

Net finance costs

Net finance costs decreased by 37% to £7 0 milion from £11 1 mulion This reduction In costs was pnmarily due to
the proceeds of the IPO enabling repayment of debt shortly after the IPO i July The interest paid on barrowings
reduced to £8 4 million

Taxation
The statutory rate of tax applicable was 28% A deferred tax credit of £5 0 million was recognised QOcado had
approximately £260 milion of unutilised carned forward tax losses as at the end of FY10

Cash flow

Net operating cash flow increased significantly this year to £23 0 million This was primarily due to a significant
reduction in loss before tax and a reduction in interest paid offsetting the impact of mimimal net changes in working
capital this year

Balance sheet

The IPO strengthened the Company’s balance sheet, moving from a net hiabilities position of £32 1 million to net
assets of £20 1 million £48 million of debt was repaid in the financial year and the financial flexibihity of the business
was further increased by the arrangement of a £100 million credit facility

Capital investment
In FY10 there was capital expenditure of £35 0 million, an increase of 52% The capital investment increased the
capacity of the Hatfield CFC, expanded the van fleet and funded the internal development of new computer software

Completion of the CFC I1s expected to cost £80 milion This wall increase both the capacity to 180,000 orders per

week and the range stocked The construction of CFC2 in Dordon, Warwickshire, will commence in the coming
months and will continue Into 2012 and beyond CFC2 15 expected to cost £210 mullion
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Directors’ report (continued)

'Ilsr?;f‘ollomng table sets out a summary of selected unaudited operating information for FY10 and FY(09
FY10 FY09 % Change

{unaudited) {unaudited)
Average order size (£) " 114 06 11594 (1 6%)
Average orders per week 92,916 70,873 31 1%
CFC efficiency (units per hour) @ 121 124 (2 2%)
Average delivenes per van per week {DPViwk) 133 121 10 3%
Average number of cperational staff {full-time equivalent) 3,835 3,151 21 7%
Average product wastage (% of gross sales) ©® 061 057 n/a
Items delivered exactly as ordered (%) ¥ 99 0 99 4 n/a
Delivenes on time or early (%) 949 930 n/a

Source The irdormaon in the table abave is denved from nf ¢ from mar
WAverage retai valus of goods a custormer rectives (incduding VAT and delivery charge) per order
2 Measured as units dispatched from the CFC per hour worked by CFC operatonal personnel

accounts and interal financial and operaing reporing systems and i1s unaudited

“’Vahedpmdmpnwdhhaungpamdhhswwwagmandmm(wmmmm&w;m&dw;m% As expected the stroducton of the

seracs courtar ncreased the level of wasts

* Percentage of a tems defivered exacly as ondered 18 he percentage of terms neshar miasng nor substiuted

Principal nsks and uncertainties

The Company faces a number of nsks and uncertainties that may have an adverse impact on the Company's

operation, performance or future prospects

It 1s 1important for the Board to effectively manage risks and opportunities in seeking to achieve the Company's
objectives The Company's policies and strategies for managing financial nsk are summarnsed in Note 24 to the

financial statements

The nsks and uncertainties described below represent those which the Directors consider to be the most significant in
achieving the potential success of the Company's strategy However, these nsks and uncertainhes do not compnse
all of the nsks associated with the Company and are not set out in any order of priority Additional nsks and
uncertainties currently not known to the Directors and/or which the Directors believe to be less matenal may also
have a matenal adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition or future prospects The relevant

mitigating factors are also descnbed below

Mitigation

Risk Area Potential impact

Strategy

New CFC and A cntical part of the Company's strategy 1s
expansion of to expand its operations by further

current developing the CFC and building at least
CFC one additional CFC in the UK to increase

its capacity to service customers The
Company’s ability to develop the CFC and
replicate its business model in CFC2 cost-
effectively and in a timely fashion wall
depend upon a vanety of factors, notably
the Company’'s ability to hire and train
employees 1o operate the CFCs,
management resources, the Company’s
ability to roll out the business systems and
infrastructure, :n particular, in any new
CFC, reliable developers and the
avallabiity of appropnate equipment and
the contractors to design and install such
equipment

Last Mile Developments Limited (“Last Mile”),
another company In the Group, has purchased
a 999-year lease on a site in Dordon,
Warwickshire for the construction of CFC2, and
groundworks have commenced The Company
intends to rent the CFC2 building from Last
Mile, once it s complete, and te fit t out The
Company has a detailed plan for the
management and resourcing of the CFC2
project and the Directors have oversight of the
project to ensure that it stays on schedule and
within budget

The Cirectors are confident that the business
systems of the existing CFC can be replicated
and enhanced in CFC2 (and in any further
CFCs In the future) within the parameters of the
capital expenditure budget set for the project
and that it can continue to successfully
complete projects to expand the existing CFC
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Directors’ report (continued)

Principal nsks and uncertainties (continued)

Risk Area Potential impact Mitigation
Operational
Single CFC The Company 1s dependent on the The Company has disaster recovery procedures

continued operation of the CFC (and to a
lesser extent, the Spokes) in order to
satisfy customer orders Any disruption
(such as an IT failure or a fire} to the
operation of the existing CFC, 1n particular,
or a Spoke may therefore have an adverse
effect on the Company's financial position
or affect the ability of the Company to
economically deliver products to certain
customers

Road network The Company's delivery service Is reliant

on delivenies by road from suppliers to the
CFC and from the CFC and the Spokes to
customers This means that inclement
weather, particularly snow, and sometimes
traffic congesticn, may reduce the number
of delivenes that can be made and/or
increase their cost

In place to mirumise possible disruption to the
business The Company 15 In the advanced
stages of a plan amed at achieving the industry
recognised “Highly Protected Status” The CFC
15 protected by fire and securnity systems$ and
has a full contingency plan to manage power
outages The Company also has insurance
policies 1n place which cover business
interruption to certain maximum levels In
addition, the Company's plans toc bulld at least
one additional CFC in the UK wall imit, in part,
the effect of any fallure at the CFC Also,
Spokes are able, to some extent, to serve
geographies of neighbouring Spokes

The Company fits winter tyres to its delivery
fleet for the winter pencd and can optimise its
delivery routing system with road speed
adjustments, for example, for inclement
weather The Company also subscnbes lo a
dedicated weather information service to give it
early warning and more accurate details of
extreme weather

Relationships with third parties

Relationship with QOcado's reputation and brand 1s based, at

Waitrcse least in part, on its relationship with
Waitrose If the Sourcing Agreement with
Waitrose were to end or if Waitrose were
unable to source products for the
Company, Ocado would need to engage
additional personnel to (1) find or create
replacement own-label products, and (i)
find appropnate suppliers and negotiate
equivalent pnces itself

The Sourcing Agreement also contains
provistons which restnct the extent to which
Ocado can source products other than
from Waitrose, and the extent to whtch
Ocado's range of Ocado own-label
products may be expanded If the parties
terminate the Sourcing Agreement after
certain competitors of Waitrose or John
Lewis gain control of the Company's
ulimate parent company, Ocado Group
plc, the Group is obliged to pay Waitrose
£40 milhon

The Company has a successfu! relattonship with
Waitrose {which 1s now In its eleventh year) and
in May 2010 agreed a new sourcing
arrangement which will continue this
relationship until at least 2017 The Company is
not particularly dependent on the Waitrose
supply chain as about 85% of products are
dehvered directly to the CFC by the relevant
supplier or manufacturer

Ocado currently stocks approximately 250
Ocado own-label products, and 1s 1n the process
of'extending this range The Directors do not
believe that the restnctions on Ocado own-label
products will have a significant impact on the
growth of the business or their intended
expansion of the range of products stocked by
Ocado
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Directors’ report (continued)

Principal nsks and uncertainties {continued)

Risk Area Potential impact

Mitigation

IT systems and security and intellectuat property

IT systems The Company relies to a significant degree
on the efficient and uninterrupted operation
of the mternet and its IT and
communications systems The Company's
business model relies on the complex
integration of the Company’s website, the
highly automated CFC, goods handling
equipment and the order fulfilment and
delivery operations Operational problems
in the Company's core systems and
technologies (such as computer server or
system failures, network outages, software
performance problems or power failures)
can result in customer orders being unable
to be captured on the Company’s website
or processed through the CFC, or errors
and delays in their delivery

IT secunty and If any compromise 1n the Company's IT

fraud security measures or payment processing
systems were to occur, the Company's
reputation may be harmed and it could lose
its customers The Company relies on third
parties to provide payment processing
services and 1s exposed to typical fraud
nsk in relation to card payments The
Company Is also subject to IT regulations
and compliance requirements

Intellectual property  The business and IT systems and

nghts intellectual property are not protected by
patents or registered design nghts which
means that the Company cannot inhibit
competitors from entenng the same market
if they develop the similar technology
independently In additon, third parties
may independently discover Ocado's trade
secrets and propnetary information or
systems

The Company has an IT strategy that i1s amed
at ensuring plans are in place o have
information systems and new technology that
provide the capabilities necessary for the
Company to maintain the integnty and reliability
of its business The Company has disaster
recovery and business continuity contingency
plans to maintain the securnty, integnty and
efficiency of its IT infrastructure The
Company's IT systems are housed in a
purpose-built data centre and it has a separate
disaster recovery data centre which houses
standby servers for all the cntrical systems and
resiient data storage systems All cntical
communication links are provided via two
diversely routed fibres and the internet
connectivity 1s provided by two major intemet
service providers

The Company uses encryption and
authentication technology to provide the secunty
necessary to effect the secure transmission of
information from its custorners, such as card
payments and to reduce possible fraud The
Company’s customers’ confidentral data 1s
protected by a range of both physical and
industry standard systems controls The
Company’s website 1s regularly tested for
vulnerability by both internal and external
teams Relevant accounting, IT and other
procedures and controls at all levels are clearly
sel out and some of which are audited across
the business to reduce the nsk of fraud Cecado
1$ undertaking a plan to ensure compliance with
the Payment Card Industry Data Secunty
Standards

The Company is relilant on copyright and
confidentiaity and licence agreements with its
employees, customers, suppliers, consultants
and others fo protect s intellectual property
nghts
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Directors’ report (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Risk Area Potential impact

Mitigation

Financing

Funding for capita! The Company's £100 million debt facility

expenditure may be terminated by the lenders if the
Sourcing Agreement with Waitrose 1s
terminated for any reason

Exchange rate, Any depreciation of sterling in relation to
interest rate and the euro will Increase the sterling
commodity equivalent of the pnce paid for the
fluctuations machinery used in CFC2 and to expand

the capacity of the CFC (which 1s mostly
purchased from suppliers located in
countrnies that have adopted the euro)
Fluctuations in the cost of commodibes (in
particular, steel) required to build CFC2
and In interest rates will impact on the
costs to the business

The Company 15 able to manage whether any
such termination nights will arnise under the
Sourcing Agreement and hence any potential
impact on the debt faciiity (wath the exception of
the change of control termination night descrnbed
above)

The Company has a policy, controlled by the
treasury committee (and authonsed by the
Directors), to hedge certain foreign currency
and interest rate exposures through the use of
denvative financial instruments and fixed and
floating instruments There are approval
parameters for hedging arrangements and a
policy to monitor and review hedging
arrangements including short and long-term
foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
counter-party nsk

Regulation

Health and safety A wviolation of health and safety laws

law relating to the Company’s operations or
construction of CFC2 or expansion of the
CFC could lead to injury to employees,
negative publicity and reputational
damage, fines, costly compliance
procedures and i very senous
circumstances, a temporary shutdown of all
or part of the business, or a delay in
construction of CFC2

Product safety The Company I1s subject to a wide vanety
of regulatory requirements including those
in relation to the manner in which it
sources, stores, handles and sells products
(such as meat and fish) to customers and
relating to the operating of its physical
facilities Any assertion or regulatory
investigation that the products supplied by
the Company caused iliness or injury to
customers or others could adversely affect
the Company's reputation with existing and
potential customers

Government A change in regulations relating to the

regulation intemet and online retait operations,
consumer protection laws, the processing
of customer data, the environment (such as
carner bags), or the sale, icensing or
storage of products could adversely affect
the manner in which the Company
currently conducts its business
Regulations govemn the weight imits of the
loads that each van can take and the
number of hours that dnvers can work on
consecutive days, impacting the potential
effictency of the business

The Company’s health and safety department
maintains and monitors procedures, which are
ahgned wth the relevant regulations and
industry standards The Company's staff are
trained 1n safe workplace practices The
Company is in the process of developing safety
procedures and reporting structures for the
CFC2 construction project

There 1s an established legal and regulatory
team in place to monitor developments and to
ensure that all existing regulations are complied
with The Company has a food technology
department which monitors procedures to
ensure quaty standards and comphance wth
applicable foed taw and which haises wath the
Wartrose focd technology department

The Company has an established governance
process in place to monitor regulatory
developments and to ensure that all existing
regulations are complied with The Company's
delivery routing software and customised vans
(which are specifically designed to improve
load-carrying capacity) help maximise the
operational efficiency of the Company's delivery
infrastructure within the scope of the existing
regulatory requirements
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Directors’ report (continued)

Principal nsks and uncertainties {continued)

Risk Area

Potential impact

Mitigation

Staff

Key management,

staff retention and
recruitment

The Company 15 rehiant on its key
management and staff for the operation of
its business The Company's ability to
recruit or adequately replace, retain and
motivate suitably qualfied and expenenced
staff 1s important for the Company's
success The relationship between the
Company and its workforce could change i
the Company were to formally recognise a
union to represent its staff

The business has had good relations with its
workforce to date The Ocado Council, the
Company's employee council, was established
by the Company in January 2010 wath a remit to
discuss the terms and conditions of employment
for the workforce and provide for further
engagement with staff The Directors continue
to keep staff remuneration and incentivisation
under review to ensure it remains competitive
The Directors expect to have constructive
communications with any union seeking
recognition by the Company

Risks relating to the industry

Competition and
the online grocery
market

UK and global
economic
conditions

The trend in UK food retailing of moving
from the traditional grocery market to the
online grocery market may not continue

The Company may be adversely affected
{in loss of market share) by the entrance of
new competitors in the online grocery
market or if the traditional grocery retallers
invest heavily in their online operations
The Company also expects some
increased competition from the Waitrcse
online business, Waitrose com when
certain exclusivity provisions, which himit
the extent to which the Waitrose com
service may compete with the Company in
the Greater London area, expire In June
2011

The Company's performance may depend
on factors outside the contro! of the Group
which impact on UK consumer spending,
including political, financial and economic
conditions

The Directors believe that the enline grocery
market will continue to grow rapidly in the UK,
particularly as the number of people shopping
onhne continues to iIncrease

Ocado has a business model which is
predicated on offenng our customers a supenor
service In terms of product quality and
convenience, reliabiity and accuracy of delivery,
as well as environmental efficiency The
Directors believe that as the Company's
proprietary intellectual property and bespoke IT
systems (including the Company's website, the
stock management systems, the CFC, the
customer delivery system and the van routing
system) become more sophisticated, so the
barners to entry for a potential online competitor
become greater The Directors do not anticipate
a significant overall smpact on the Company
from the increased competition from

Waitrose com

The Company regularly reviews its approach to
pricing, marketing and product range for
approprateness to market conditions and to
adapt to customer feedback Despite the recent
economic downturn the Company’s sales have
continued to grow rapidly

Employee involvement
The Company’s unique and informal culture means that many of its people have direct access to its senior leaders
We hold weekly board lunches with employees from across the whole business to increase dialogue between staff
and business leaders Ocado's employees are kept well informed of the performance of the Company and key events
concermning the business through regular staff bnefings done by management and through communications via the
internet, email and video and audio recordings (which are particularly helpful for communicating with our large
number of delivery drivers)}

In order to better faciitate employee involvement and feedback in our rapidly growing business we have introduced
the ‘Ocado Council’, which I1s a representative forum for dizlogue between Ocado employees and leaders of the
business The Ocado Council was formed in January 2010 when elections were held to select 47 council
representatives from across the business The Qcado Council's achievements over its first year of existence include
involvement in changes to terms and conditions of employment, pay and bonus awards, performance reviews,
organisational changes and physical working environment improvements
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Directors’ report (continued)

Equal opportunities and disabled employees

We are committed to equal opportunties for all of our people, regardiess of disability or background, from recrutment
and selection, through traning and development and promation It 1s the policy of the Company that apphcations for
employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective aptitudes and abihities of
the applicant concerned In the event of employees becoming disabled all reasonable effort 1s made to ensure that
their employment within the Company continues 1t 1s the policy of the Company that the training, career development
and promotion of a disabled person should, as far as possible, be identical to that of an able bodied person

Chantable and political contributions

The Company has a chanty committee made up of a number of employees, with the aim of encouraging support of
certain chantable organisations by Ocado emplayees through the organisation of vanous fundraising imtiatives
Dunng the penod employees of the Company raised more than £15,000 (2009 £7,000) for a number of chanties, the
details of which are set out below

Bntish Heart Foundation £6,190
NSPCC £4.143
MacMillan Cancer Relief £2.493
Cancer Research UK £990
The Harry Chnstie Surgery Fund £820
Paul Dix Appeal (Princess Alexandra Hospital) £650
Kent Air Ambulance £361
Sick Children’s Fund (Coventry) £117

Ocado made charnitable donations during the penod of over £14,000 (2009 £2,000) Included in the amount for the
current penod Is a donation of £10,000 to the 10 10 Trust, which is a chanty committed to reducing carbon emissions
by 10% a year

No political donations were made during the penod by the Company (2009 E£nil)
The Company also donates money to the Waitrose Foundation and the Pnnce's Chanties Foundation

Board of Directors
The following persons served as Execulive Directors dunng the penod

Tim Steiner,

Netll Abrams,
Andrew Bracey, and
Jason Gissing

There were a number of changes to the Board durning the period Michael Robarts was appointed to the Company's
Board on 19 January 2010 as a Non-Executive Director David Gngson was appointed to the Company's Beard on 3
February 2010 as a Non-Executive Director  The Non-Executive Directors, Tom Clayton, Jenathan Faiman and
Jeremy Frampton resigned from the Company's Board on 9 March 2010

Lord Grade of Yarmouth, Robert Gorne, J6rm Rausing, David Young, Patnck Lewis, Michael Robarts and Dawvid
Gngson resigned from the Company’s Board when, along with the Executive Directors, they became Directors of the
Company’s ultimate parent company Ocado Group pic on 9 March 2010

Directors’ interests

The Directors’ did not have beneficial interests in the shares of the Company at the end of the penod  The Directors’
beneficial interests in the shares of the ultmate parent company, Ocado Group plc, are disclosed in full in the
accounts of that company Copies of those accounts can be obtained from its registered office, which 1s Titan Court, 3
Bishops Square, Hatfield Business Park, Hatfield, Hertfordshire AL10 9NE, or alternatively from its corporate website
www ocadogroup com

Directors’ insurance indemnities

The Company's ultimate parent, Ocado Group plc, maintains directors' and officers’ habihty insurance cover for
Directors and officers as permitted under the Company's Articles and the Comparies Act  Such insurance policies
cover the Directors of Ocado Group plc and of each of its group undertakings, including the Company In additon,
the Directors are indemnified under an indemnity deed between Ocado Group plc and each Director which covers
Qcado Group plc and its subsidiary undertakings, including the Company Each indemnity deed contains provisions
that are permitted by the director hiability provisions of the Companies Act and the Company's Articles Qualifying
third party indemnity prowisions (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act) were in force dunng the penod and
remain in force for the benefit of the Directors (and any officer) of the Company or of any associated company
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Directors’ report (continued)

Research and development and future developments

The Company has a dedicated in-house software design and development team with primary focus on IT and
improvements to the CFC and its matenal handling equipment Costs relating to the development of computer
software for internal use are capitalised The Company’s likely future developments are described above

Results and dividends
The Company’s results for the period are set out In the Income statement on page 14 The Company's profit after tax
for the perniod amounted to £0 7 mithon (2009 loss of £23 2 million)

The Directors do not propose to pay a dividend for the period (2008 £nl)

Post balance sheet events
Events occurning after the balance sheet date that affect the Company are disclosed in Note 31 to the financial
statements

Creditor payment policy

It is the Company's policy, In respect of the cumrent financial year for all trade creditors, to agree payment terms in
advance of the supply of goods with the supplier, to make the suppher aware of the terms of payment and to adhere
to those payment terms The Company does not follow any code or standard on payment practice In respect of the
current financial year The Company’s average creditor payment penod for the 52 weeks ended 28 November 2010
was 26 days (2009 27 days), based on the ratio of Company trade creditors at the end of the year to the amounts
invoiced dunng the year by trade creditors

Market value of properties
The Directors are of the opinion that the aggregate market value of the Company’s properties as at 28 November
2010 15 1n ine with the net book value as set out N Note 11 to the financial statements

Going concern

After making appropriate enguines and having considered the business activiies as set out on page 2 and the
Company's principal nsks and uncertainties as set on pages 5 to 9, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future  Accordingly, the financial
statements have been prepared on the going concern basis
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Directors’ report {(continued)

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial
year Under that law the Directors have prepared the Company financial statements in accordance with Internatonal
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS-EU") Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fairr view of the
state of affarrs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period in preparnng these financial
statements, the Directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
» make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the
Company will contince in business

The Directors are responsibie for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Comparny
financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other uregulanties The Directors are
responsible for the mantenance and integnty of the Company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom goverming the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legis!ation in other jurisdictions

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each Director who held office at the date of the approval of this Directors’ report confirms that, so far as he or she s
aware, there s no refevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and that each Director
has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make tumself or herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

Forward-looking statements

Certain statements made in this report are forward-looking statements Such statements are based on current
expectations and assumptions and are subject to a number of nsks and uncertanties that could cause actual events
or results to differ matenally from any expected future events or results expressed or implied in these forward-looking
statements They appear in a number of places throughout this report and include statements regarding the
intentions, beliefs or current expectations of the Directors concerning, amongst other things, the Company's results of
operations, finanaal condiion, hquidity, prospects, growth, strategies and the business Persons receiving this report
should not place undue reliance on forward-locking statements Unless otherwise required by applicable law,
regulation or accounting standard, Ocado does not undertake to update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise

Approved by the Board

MW

Neill Abrams
Company Secretary and Director of Legal and Business Affars

10 May 2011
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Independent auditors’ report to the member of Ocado Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Ocado Limited for the year ended 28 November 2010 which comprise
the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows, the
statement of changes in equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation i1s applicable law and Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page12 the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Internattonal Standards on
Auditing (UK and Irelend) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report, including the apinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no cther purpose  We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1S
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasanable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate toc the company's
crrcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opimon on financial statements ‘

In our opinion the financial statements

« gwe a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 28 November 2010 and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Compames Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financtal year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparnies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you If, In our opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or
the financia) statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Voy/”

Clive Hinds (Sentor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

St Albans

10 May 2011
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Income statement
for the 52 weeks ended 28 November 2010

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
Notes £'000 £'000
Revenue 5 515,688 401,997
Cost of sales (354,043) (279,168)
Gross profit 161,645 122,829
Other income 6,245 2,641
Distribution costs (132,809) {110,331)
f::;ratlng profit before admimistrative expenses and exceptional 35,081 15,139
Administrative expenses (36,784) (29,542)
Exceptional item 6 4,400 -
Operating profit/{loss) 6 2,697 {14,403)
Finance income 8 1,414 12
Finance costs 8 {8,394) (11,118)
Loss before tax (4,283) (25,509}
Taxation 9 5,000 2,300
z;::‘f‘igglsji) for the pencd attnbutable to the owners of the 717 (23,209)
t Non-GAAP measure Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation, impairment and
exceptional item (EBITDA}
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 November 29 November
2010 20069
Notes £'000 £'000
Profit/(ioss) for the peniod attributable to the owners of the Company 717 {23,209)
Adjustments for
Finance income 8 (1,414) (12)
Finance costs 8 8,394 11,118
Taxation 9 (5,000) (2,300)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11 19,333 17,865
Amortisation expense 10 4,474 4,743
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 11 14 1,023
Exceptional item 6 {4,400) -
Earnings before interest, taxation, deprecration, 22118 0228
amortisation, impaiment and exceptional itern (EBITDA) ) '
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the 52 weeks ended 28 November 2010

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Profit/(loss) for the period attnbutable to the owners of the Company 717 (23,209)
Other comprehensive iIncome
Cash flow hedges - forward foreign exchange contracts
- Gains ansing n the period 818 -
- Gains transferred to property, plant and equipment for the period (92) -
Other comprehensive income for the penod 726 -
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the penod attributable to the 1.443 (23.209)
owners of the Company ' !
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Balance sheet
as at 28 November 2010

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
Notes £'000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 10 8,069 6,684
Property, plant and equipment 11 100,031 90,252
Deferred tax asset 9 7,300 2,300
Avallable-for-sale financial asset 12 395 395
115,795 99,631
Current assets
Inventones 13 12,480 9,213
Trade and other receivables 14 72,365 14,740
Dernwvative financial instruments 21 472 -
Cash and cash equivalents 15 9,070 13,017
94,387 36,970
Total assets 210,182 136,601
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 16 (115,536) (47,237)
Borrowings 17 (2.282) {12,087)
Obligations under finance leases 17 (16,485) (19,669)
(134,303) {78,993)
Net current habilities (39,916) (42,023)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 (9.774) (42,658)
Obhgations under finance leases 17 (45,573) {45,651)
Derivative financial instruments 21 - {1,083)
Provisions 20 (446) (366)
(55,793) (89,758)
Net assets / (habilities) 20,086 {32,150)
Equity
Share capital 22 - 40
Share premium 22 360,279 310,836
Other reserves 22 2,056 -
Accumulated deficit (342,249) (343,026)
Surplus / (deficit) attnbutable to equity holders 20,086 {32.150)

The financial statements on pages 14 to 60 were authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors and signed on its

behalf by

Andrew Bracey Director

QOcado Limited

Company Registration Number 3875000 (England and Wales)

10 May 2011
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Statement of cash flows
for the 52 weeks ended 28 Novembher 2010

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
Notes £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax {4,283) {25,509)
Adjustments for
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11 19,333 17,865
- Amortisation expense 10 4,474 4,743
- Imparment of property, plant and equipment i 14 1,023
- (Profit)loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 (63) 33
- Exceptional item 6 {4,400) -
- Increase 1n provision for dilaprdations expense 20 80 169
- Share-based payments charge 7 220 78
_Novation of derivative liability in respect of warrants 1ssued by 21 1126 _
Ocado Limited )
- Finance income 8 (1,414) (12)
- Finance costs 8 8,394 11,118
Changes in working capital
- Increase in inventones {3,267) (106)
- Increase in trade and other receivables (3,368) (2,707)
- Increase In trade and other payables 16,464 10,135
Cash generated from operations 33,310 16,830
Interest pand {10,313) (12,740)
Net cash flows from operating activities 22,997 4,090
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, ptant and equipment {14,681) {15,215)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 87 -
Purchase of intangible assets (5.850) (4,389)
Loans advanced (586) -
Interest received 439 12
Net cash flows from investing activities (20,591) (19,592)
Cash flows from financing activities
5;?122%:2 r\:rgr)nstt:e Issue of ordinary share capital net of 1.705 29,129
Proceeds from borrowings 15,932 25,052
Repayment of borrowings {10,249) {28,374)
Proceeds from asset based financing arrangements 1,676 7.135
Repayments of obligations under finance leases {15,417) {10,280)
Net cash flows from financing activities (6,353) 22,662
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,947) 7,160
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 13,017 5,857
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 15 9,070 13,017
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Statement of changes in equity
for the 52 weeks ended 28 November 2010

(Deficit) /
Share Share Other Accumulated surplus
capital premium reserves defiot atinbutable to
equity holders
Notes £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 December 2008 38 281,649 1,139 {321,034} (38.208)
Loss for the period - - - (23,209) {23,209)
Total comprehensive expense for the
period - - - (23.209) (23,209)
Transactions with owners
- Issue of ordmary shares 22 2 30,072 - - 30,074
Transaction costs on 1ssue of
*  ordinary shares 22 ) (945) ) ) (945)
_ Issue of convertible preference
shares 22 ) 60 ) ) 60
. Transfer of equity on conversion of
loan stock 2b} . ) () 5 i
_ Transfer of equity on repayment of
loan stock 22(b} - - (1.134) 1,134 -
- Share-based payments charge 23 - - - 78 78
Total transactions with owners 2 29,187 (1,139) 1,217 29,267
Balance at 29 November 2009 40 310,836 - (343,026} (32,150)
Prafit for the penod - - - 717 717
Other comprehensive income 22(b) - - 726 - 726
Total comprehensive income for the
penod - - 726 77 1,443
Transactions with owners
- Issue of ordinary shares 22 3 49,443 - - 49,446
Cancellation of ordinary and )
preference shares (43} ) . 43
- Capital contnbutions from parent - - 1,330 1,330
- Share-based payments charge 23 - - - 17 17
Total transactions with owners (40) 49,443 1,330 60 50,793
Balance at 28 November 2010 - 360,279 2,056 (342,249) 20,086
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Qcado Limited {hereafter “the Company”) is incorperated and domiciled in the United Kingdom The address of its
registered office 1s Titan Court, 3 Bishops Square, Hatfield Business Park, Hatfield, Hertfordshire, AL10 9NE The
financial penod represents the 52 weeks ending 28 November 2010 (pnor penod 52 weeks ending 29 November
2009)

2 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation and development of Ocado Limited

These financial statements contain information about Ocado Limited as an individual company and do not contain
consolidated financial information as the parent of a group The Company has taken advantage of the exemption
under section 400 of the Comparnies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consohidated financial statements as it
and its subsidiary undertakings are included by full consolidation in the consolidated financial statements of its
ulimate parent, Ocado Group plc, a company incorporated in England and Wales The consohdated financial
statements of Ocado Group plc can be oblained from its registered office, which is Titan Court, 3 Bishops Square,
Hatfield Business Park, Hatfield, Hertfordshire, AL10 9NE, or alternatively from its corporate website

www ocadogroup com

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internattonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) interpretations as endorsed by the European
Umion, and those parts of the Compames Act applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The financial statements are presented in sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand (£'000) unless otherwise stated
It has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial instruments that have been measured
at far value through profit and loss

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes that the Company wall
continue to be able to meet its habilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future

Use of assumptions and estimates

The preparation of financtal statements in conformity wath IFRS requires the use of Judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and llabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting penod The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on histoncal expenence and vanous other factors that are believed to be reascnable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying valuas of assets and
labilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

These estimates and underlying assumptions are revtewed on an ongoing basis  Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate 1s revised If the revision affects only that penod or in the penod of
the revision and future periods If the revision affects both current and future penods Please see Note 3 for further
detalls

Standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company in 2010 or issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

The following IFRSs, IFRIC interpretations and amendments, effective for penods beginning on or after the date
shown below, have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

Amendment to IFRS 2, “Share Based Payments” is effective from 1 January 2010

Amendment to IFRS 3, “Business Combinations” 15 effective from 1 January 2011

Amendment to IFRS 5, “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” 1s effective from 1
January 2010

Amendment to IFRS 7, “Financal Instruments Disclosures” 1s effective from 1 January 2011

IFRS 8, “Fiancial Instruments”™ new standard effective from 1 January 2013

Amendment to IAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements” 1s effective from 1 January 2011
Amendment to JAS 12, “Income Taxes" 1s effective from 1 January 2012

Amendment to IAS 21, *“The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” 1s effective from 1 July 2010
Amendment to IAS 24, “Related party Disclosures” 1s effective from 1 January 2011

Amendment to IAS 32, “Financial Instruments Presentation” 1s effective from 1 February 2010
Amendment to IAS 34, “Intenm Financial Reporting”™ 15 effective from 1 January 2011

Amendment to IFRIC 13, “Customer Layalty Programs” i1s effective from 1 January 2011

The adoption of these standards, interpretations and amendments 1s not anticipated to have a matenal effect on the
results of the Company
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency
Itemns included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”) Sterling 1s the Company’s functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functionai currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated In foreign currencies are recognised In the income statement, except when deferred in equity
as gualifying cash flow hedges

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
income statement within *finance income” or ‘finance costs” All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented 1n the income statement within “*Operating loss”

{c) Revenue

Revenue consists of Income generated from online sales through the Company's customer facing website and
includes charges for delivery

Online sales are shown net of retums, relevant marketing vouchers/offers and value added taxes Relevant
vouchers/offers include money-off coupons, conditional spend vouchers and offers such as buy three for the price of
two

Revenue 1s recognised at the point when the significant risks and rewards of products have been passed to the buyer
and can be reliably measured, in general this 1s deemed to occur when customers take delivery of the goods

lncome from “Ocado Delivery Pass”, the discounted pre-pay delivery scheme, 1s recognised in the penod to which it
relates on an accruals basis

(d) Cost of sales

Cost of sales represents the cost to the Company of the product sold it consists of all external costs incurred In
procurning goods for resale and delivering them to the Customer Fulfiiment Centre as well any adjustments to
Inventores

{e) Distnbution costs

Distribution costs consist of all the costs incurred, excluding product costs, to the point of sale, usually the customers’
home Ttus includes the payroll-related expenses for the picking, dispatch and delivery of product sold to the pont of
sale, the cost of making those delivenes, including fuel, tolls, maintenance of vehicles, the operating costs of the
properties required for the picking, dispatch and onward delivery operations and all associated depreciation,
amortisation and imparment charges

(f) Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses consist of all advertising and marketing expenditure, the payroll-related expenses of all
marketing, IT and other Head Office functions, costs of annual software maintenance contracts, property-related
costs for the Head Office, all fees for professional services and depreciation, amortisation and impairment of IT
equipment and fixtures and fittings

{g) Other iIncome

Other iIncome consists of advertising revenue, commission iIncome received and income from other services to
supplers
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

{h} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment excluding land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
mpawrment loss Cost includes the onginal purchase pnce of the asset and any costs attnbutable to bnnging the
asset to its working condition for its intended use

Depreciation is provided at rates estimated to write off the cost of the relevant assets less their estimated residual
values by equal annual amounts over their expected useful economic ives Residual values and expected useful
economic hves are reviewed and adjusted, iIf appropnate, at the end of each reporting period

Land 1s not depreciated Depreciation on other fixed assets 1s found within distnbution expenses and is calculated
based on the useful economic life Indicated below

Freehold buldings and leasehold properties 25 years, or the lease term f sherter

Fixtures and fithngs 5— 10 years
Plant and machinery 3 - 20 years (97% between 5 and 10 years)
Motor vehicles 2-5years

Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated until it (s available for use

Gams and losses on disposal are determined by comparnng proceeds with the asset's carrying amount and are
recognised within operating profit

(1) Intangible assets - Computer software

Computer software 1s carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and any recogrised imparment loss  Externally
acquired computer software and software licences are capitalised and amortised on a straight-ine basis over therr
useful economic lives of three to five years Costs relating to the development of computer software for internal use
are capitalised once all the development phase recognition critena of IAS 38 “Intangible Assets” are met When the
software I1s avallable for its Intended use, these costs are amortised in equal annual amounts over the estimated
useful life of the software Amortisation and impairment of computer software or licenses I1s charged to administration
expenses n the penod in which it anses

(1) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company does not have any assets that have an indefinite useful life and so are not subject to an annual
amortisation or depreciation charge Assets that are subject to an annual amortisation or depreciation charge are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s farr value less cost to sell and value in use
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units) Non-financial assets that suffered imparment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the imparrment at each reporting date

Given the Company’s current operating structure the lowest level at which cash flows can reasonably be assessed 1s
for the Company as a whole The Company 1s still investing tin ifs future growth and so has not yet reached a slage
where 1t delivers positive post tax eamings The Company prepares detailed forward projections which are constantly
updated and refined Based on these projections the Board does not consider that any further impairment of assets
1s required

(k) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised
They are defined as the borrowing costs that would have been avoided if the expenditure on the qualifying asset had
not been made Al! other borrowing costs are charged to finance costs, using the effective interest rate method

(1) Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership to the Company All other leases are classified as operating leases For property leases, the land and
bullding elements are treated separately to determine the appropnate lease classification

Finance leases

Assets funded through finance leases are capitalised either as property, plant and equipment, or intangible assets, as
appropnate, and are depreciated/ amortised over their estimated useful lives or the lease term, whichever 1s shorter
The amount capitalised 1s the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments
durmng the lease term at the inception of the lease The resulting lease obligations are included in habilities net of
finance charges Finance costs on finance leases are charged directly to the income statement on an effective
interest rate basis
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

(m) Leased assets {continued)

Operating leases
Assets leased under operating leases are not recorded on the balance sheet Rental payments are charged directly
to the income statement on a straight line basis

Lease incentives
Lease incentives prnmarily include up-front cash payments or rent-free penods Lease incentives are capitalised and
spread over the period of the lease term

{n) Inventones

Inventories comprise goods held for resale, fuel and other consumable goods made up principally of spares
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Goods held for resale and consumables are
initially valued on a current cost basis and adjustments are made at the financial perod end to bnng this to an
average cost basis Fuel stocks are valued at calculated average cost Costs include all direct expenditure and other
appropnate attnbutable costs incurred in bringing inventones to their present location and condition

{o) Taxation

The tax expense for the penod comprises current and deferred tax Tax s recognised in the ncome statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recogrised in other comprehensive iIncome or directly in equity  In this
case the tax 1s also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively

Current taxation

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the penod, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date Management pernodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation 1s subject to interpretation It establishes provisions where appropnate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 15 recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax
base of assets and liabilites and therr carnying amount in the financial statements Deferred {ax 15 calculated at the
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset 1s realised or the deferred tax ability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recogmised only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avalable
against which the temporary differences can be utiised The carrying amount of deferred tax assets I1s reviewed at
each balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets and liabiities are offset against each other when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set-off
current taxation assets against current taxation habilities and it 1s the intention to settle these on a net basis

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to tems charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also recognised in equity

{p} Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be
reliably estimated

Dilapidations

Provisions for dilapidations are recognised on a lease by lease basis and are based on the Company’s best estimate
of the likely committed outflow to the Company Where matenal, these estimated outflows are discounted to net
present value

{q) Employee benefits

Pensions

The Company contributes to the personal penston plans of its staff through a defined contnbution personal penston
scheme which 1s administered by Standard Life Employer contnbutions to the scheme are calculated as a
percentage of salary based on length of scheme membership Contnbutions are charged to the income statement in
the penod in which they anse
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 Accounting policies {continued)

(q) Employee benefits {continued)

Share-based payments

Employees (including Directors) of the Company receve remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for nghts over shares (“equity-settled transactions™)
The cost of equity settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted Fair value 1s measured by use of the Black-Scholes prncing model The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restnctions and behavioural considerations  In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account 1s taken of any
performance conditions

The cost of equity-settled transactions 1s recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the years
in which the perfermance conditiens are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully
entitled to the award ("vesting date”) The vesting perod is 3 years If the oplions remain unexercised after a period
of 10 years from the date of grant or the employee leaves the Company, the options expire (subject to a hmited
number of exceptions}

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which both the vesting penod has expired and the number of awards, in the opinion of the
Directors of the Company based on the best available estimate at that date, that wll ulimately vest

No expense 1s recegnised for awards that do not ultmately vest, except for awards where vesting 1s conditional upon
a market condition, which are treated as vestng wrespective of whether or not the market condittion 1s satisfied,
provided that all other performance conditions are satsfied

The Company has exposure in respect of cash-settled share-based payment transactions and share-based payment
transactions with cash alternatives as defined by IFRS 2 “Share-based Payments” only in respect of bad leaver
provisions in the JSOS

For details of the share options see Note 23

{r) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habiliies are recogmised on the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categones

* Avallable-for-sale,

+ Loans and recevables,

« Other financial habiities at amortised cost, and

+ Financial habilhes at farr vatue through the profit or loss

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets and habiites were acquired Management
determines the classification of its finanaal instruments at initial recognition or in certain circumstances on
madification

Available-for-sale financial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assels are non-denvatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categones They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management
intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting penod Management consider that the Company's
investments fall withmn this category as explained below

Investments
Investments are classified as either held for trading or available-for-sale There are currently no investments
classified as held for trading

Available-for-sale investments are held at fair value If this can be reliably measured If the equity instruments are not
quoted in an active market and their fair value cannot be reliably measured the availlable-for-sale investment i1s
camed at cost, less accumulated imparment  Unless the vaiuation falls below its criginal cost, gains and losses
ansing from changes in far value of availlable-for-sale assets are recognised directly in equity On disposal the
cumulative net gain or loss 1s transferred to the statement of comprehensive income  Imparments and valuations
below costs are recognised In the income statement Dwvidends are recognised n the income statement when the
nght to receive payment 1s established
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

(r) Financial instruments (continued)}

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-denivative financial assets with fixed or determinable paymenits that are not qucted in
an active market They are included in current assets, except for matunties greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting penod These are classified as non-current assets The Company's loans and receivables comprise
“Trade and other recervables and “Cash and cash equivalents” in the balance sheet

Trade and other receivables
Trade recevables are non-interest bearing and are recognised inhially at fair value, and subsequently at amortised
cost, reduced by appropniate allowances for estimated rrecoverable amounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash In hand and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Company's cash management They are therefare included as a companent of cash
and cash equivalents

Financial habilities and equity instruments

Financial habilties and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into  An equity instrument 1s any contract that gives a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its llabilities

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are inihally recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective
nterest rate method

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are inihally recorded at fair value, net of attributable transaction costs
Subsequent to imibal recognition, interest-bearning borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between cost and redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings on
an effective interest rate basis  On the balance sheet, interest bearing horrowings have been subcategonsed as
borrowings and obligations under finance leases

Compound nstruments
Compound financial instruments 1ssued by the Company comprise convertible loan stock that can be converted to
convertible preference shares at the option of the holder

The liabiity component of the compound financial Instrument 1s recogrused on the date of inception or modfication at
the far value of a similar hability that does not have an equity conversion option  The equity element is recognised as
the difference between the farr value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the far value of the hability
component Any directly attnbutable transaction costs are allocated to the equity and liabtity components in
proportion to thewr initial carrying amounts

Subsequently, the liability component of a compound financial instrument 1s measured at amorhised cost using the
effective interest rate method

Derivative financial instruments

Denvatives are imitially recognised at fair value on the date a denvative contract i1s entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their far value The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative I1s designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged The Company has
designated alt outstanding denvative financial instrument balances at 28 November 2010 as cash flow hedges of
highly probable forecast transactions

The Company documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as 1is sk management objectives and strategy for undertaking vanous hedging transactions
The Company also documents Its assessment, both at hedge inception and at the financial reporting period, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of hedged items

The fair values of the vanous denvative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in Note 23  Movements
on the hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity are shown In the statement of comprehensive mcome  The full fair
value of a hedging derivative Is classified as a current asset when the remaining matunty of the hedged item 1s less
than 12 months
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

(r) Financial instruments (continued)

Cash flow hedging

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualfy as cash flow hedges 1s
recogmsed in equity Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss When the hedged forecast transaction results 1n the recognition of property, plant
and equipment the gains or losses previously deferred in equity are included in the initial cost of the asset and are
ultmately recognised n profit or loss through the depreciation ine

Equity instruments
Equity mstruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct iIssue costs

(s} Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Company assesses whether there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset 1s imparred at the end of each
reporting period A financial asset I1s impaired and an impairment loss recognised if there Is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of a loss event that occurred after the iniial recognition of the asset and the loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets that can be rehably estimated

The criteria that the Company uses to determine that there s objective evidence of an impairment loss includes but 1s
not imited to

financtal difficulty indicators,

breach of contract such as missed payments,
fraud,

bankruptcy, and

disappearance of an active market

The amount of the 1055 15 measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assets onginal effective interest rate  The assets carrying
value 1s reduced and the loss recognised in the statement of comprehensive iIncome

If, In a subsequent penod, the iImpairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised the reversal of the previously recogmised imparrment loss 1S
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

Available-for-sale financial assets

Equity investments classified as avallable-for-sale and held at cost are reviewed annually to identify if an impairment
loss has occurred The amount of the impairment loss 1s measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset Impairment losses recognised in the iIncome statement on equity Investments are
not reversed

3 Cntical accounting estimates and assumptions

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenence and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerring the future  The resulting accounting estimates will, by
defimition, seldom equal the related actual results The estmates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of
causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabihties within the next financial period are
addressed below

{a) Intangible assets - capitahised software

Cost capitalisation

Amounts capitalised include the total cost of any external products or services and labour costs directly attnbutable to
development Management judgement Is involved In determining the appropniate internal costs to capitalise and the
amounts involved

Useful life

The usefui life 1s determined by management at the time the software I1s acquired and brought into use and 1s
regularly reviewed for appropnateness For computer software licences, the useful life represents management’s
view of the expected period over which the Company will receive benefits from the software, but not exceeding the
licence term  For unique software products controlled and developed by the Company, the life 1s based on histoncal
expernience with similar products as well as anticipation of future events, winch may impact therr useful economic life,
such as changes in technology
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

3 Cntical accounting estimates and assumptions {continued)

{b} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represents a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company being 33% in
2010 (2009 66%) of the Company's total assets Therefore, the estimates and assumptions made to determine their
carrying value and related depreciation are cnitical to the Company's financial position and performance

Estimation of useful Iife

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is denved after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful
Iife and the expected residual value at the end of its hfe  Increasing an asset’s expected life or its residual value
would result In a reduced depreciation charge in the statement of comprehensive income

The useful ves of the Company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset i1s acquired and
reviewed at least annually for appropriateness The lives are based on histoncal expenence with similar assets as
well as anticipation of future events, which may impact ther Iife, such as changes in technology

{c) Going concern basis including its effect on the impairment of assets

The Company has cash reserves and mantains a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance that 1s designed
to ensure the Company has sufficient available funds for its operations and 1its planned expansion The Company
monitors cash flow as part of its day to day control procedures and management consider cash flow projections on a
monthly basis ensuring that appropnate facilittes are available to be drawn upon as necessary The Company also
prepares detailed forward projections for future penods which are constantly updated and refined Asa
consequence, the Directors are satisfied that the Company 1s able to maintain suffictent resources to continue in
operation for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they have adopted the going concern basis in prepanng the
financial statements

Impairment of assets based on the separation of the business into cash generating units

The Company 1s required to undergo an assessment of the future viability of assels grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units) Given the Company's current operating
structure, the lowest level at which cash flows can reasonably be assessed Is for the Company as a whole The
Company s still iInvesting in its future growth and so has not yet reached a stage where it delivers positive post tax
earnings Based on the future projections referred to above, the Board do not consider that any further impairment of
assets 1s required There are a large number of assumptions and estimates involved in calculating these future
projections, including management's expectations of

« Increase In gross sales,

e Growth in EBITDA,

+» Tirming and quantum of future capital expenditure, and

+ The estimation of future funding and the cost of such funding
(d) Leases

The Company has a number of complex tugh value lease arrangements The Company follows the guidance of IAS
17 “Leases” to determine the classification of leases as operating leases versus finance leases The classification of
a lease as a finance lease as opposed to an operating lease will change EBITDA as the charge made by the lessor
will pass through finance charges and depreciation will be charged on the capitalised asset Retaned earnings may
also be temporanly affected depending on the relative size of the amounts apportioned to capital repayments and
depreciation 1AS 17 “Leases” requires the Company to consider property leases spht into their component parts (1 e
land and building elements) separately As only the builldings elements could be considered as a finance lease
management must make a judgement, based on advice from suitable experts, as to the relative value of the land and
buildings

{e)} Recognition of deferred tax assets

The Company's tax charge on ordinary activities 1s the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges The
calculation of the total tax charge necessanly involves a degree of estimation and judgement in respect of certan
items The final outcome of some of these items may give nise to matenal profit and loss andfor cash flow vanances

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised when it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered Recognition, therefore, mvolves judgement regarding the prudent forecasting of future taxable
profits of the business and in applying an appropnate nsk adjustment factor

At the balance sheet date management has forecast that the Company would generate future taxable profits against

which existing tax losses could be relieved As a result the Company has recognised a deferred tax asset of £7 3
million wath respect to available tax losses
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4 Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker The chief operating decision-maker, who 1s responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Executive Directors

The principal activity of the Company 1s the retailing and distnbution of grocery and consumer goods within the UK
The results from the licensing of intellectual property for use outside of the UK to a non-UK subsidiary and the
estabhshment in October 2010 of a captive insurance celi (see Note 28) in Malta are not cumently separately reported
as they are not considered matenal and management do not believe information about these segments would be
useful to the users of the financial statements

The prnncipal activity of the Company 1s managed as one segment and does not spiit its activibes into any further
regional or product subdivisions In its internal management reporting, as any such split would not provide the
Company's management with any meaningful information Consequently all activibies relate to this one segment

The Company 1s domiciled in the UK All of its revenue 1s from UK external customers and all non-current assets are
located in the UK
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Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

5 Gross sales ’
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Revenue 515,688 401,997
VAT 27,285 18,788
Marketing vouchers 8,126 65,493
Gross sales 551,099 427,278
6 Operating profit/(loss)
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
Notes £'000 E'000
Operating profit/(loss) 1s stated after chargingf(crediting) the following
Cost of iInventones recognised as an expense 344,796 271,613
Employment costs 7 96,639 78,181
Amortisation expense 10 4,474 4,743
Depreciation of property, plant and equiprnent 1" 19,333 17.865
Impairment of propery, plant and equipment 1" 14 1,023
(Profit)floss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (63) 33
Exceptional item {4,400) -
Charges/(credit) relating to the impairment of receivables 24(b) 45 (30)
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings 2,347 1,815
- other leases 413 191
Net foreign exchange losses 160 72
The exceptional item represents the profit on sale of intellectual property to a group undertaking
During the period, the Company obtained the following services from its auditors
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Audit services
- Statutory Company audit 185 90
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7 Employee information

Employment costs dunng the financial period were as follows

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
Notes £'000 £'000
Staff costs dunng the period
Wages and salanes 91,699 74,118
Social secunty costs 8,665 7,015
Pension costs - defined contnbution plans 1,197 1,067
Share-based payments expense 220 78
Total employment costs 101,781 82,276
Staff costs caprtalised 10 (5,142) (4,095)
Total employment cost expense 96,639 78,181
Avlverage monthly number of employees {including Executive Directors) by
role
Operational staff 3,835 3,151
Support staff 417 343
4,252 3,494

The share-based payment expense relate {o equity-settled share schemes only (see Note 23 for infermation on the

Group’s share option schemes)

The key management comprises the Executive and Non-Executive Directors  The key management personnel

compensation is as follows

28 November

29 November

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Salaries, fees and other short-term employee benefits 2,197 1,640
Pension costs - defined contnbution plans 64 75
Equity settled share based payments granted under the joint share 75 .
ownership scheme

2,336 1,715

The table below gives the number of share options 1ssued under the executive share ownership scheme to the

Directors dunng the penod

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
Number of share opttons issued in the penod - 463
Exercise price (£) - 135

Robert Gorne exercised 2,750 share options dunng the perod (2009 nil} The exercise pnce of these options ranged
between £90 and £100, as these oplions were exercised before the reorganisation of the Group Total gans realised

upon exercise of these options were £106,000
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
7 Employee information (continued)

The highest paid Director's compensation 1s as follows

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Salaries, fees and other short-term employee benefits 618 618
Pension costs - defined contnbution plans 28 34
Equity-settled share based payments granted under the joint share 28 .
ownership scheme

674 652

8 Finance income and costs
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Interest on cash balances 4 5
Interest on loans to group undertakings 1,364 -
Other mterest 48 7
Finance income 1.414 12
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (25) 41)
Interest on finance leases (4,356) (5.009)
Interest on borrowings (3.970) (5.717)
Interest on convertible loan - (347)
Fair value movement in dervative liability {43) 4
Finance costs (8,394) (11,118)
Net finance costs (6,980) (11,1086)

Included in interest cn borrowings 1s an amount of £197 000 relating to the accelerated amortisation of prepaid

arrangement fees
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9 Taxation -
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Recognised i the income statement
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits of the penod - -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - -
Total current tax - -
Deferred tax
Recognitton of tax losses (5,000) {2,300)
Tota! deferred tax (5,000) {2,300)
Income tax credit (5,000) {2,300)

The tax on the Company's loss before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

average tax rate applicable to losses of the Company as follows

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

28 November 29 November

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Loss before tax {4,283) (25,509)

Effective tax credit at the UK tax rate of 28% (2009 28%) (1.199) (7.143)
Effect of

Permanent differences 138 332

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset recognised (6,339} 1,793

Temporary differences on which no deferred tax recognised 2,400 2,718

Income tax credit for the pernod (5,000) {2,300)

A number of changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the June 2010 Budget Statement The
Finance (No 2) Act 2010, which was substantively enacted on 20 July 2010, includes legislation reducing the main
rate of corporation tax from 28 per cent to 27 per cent from 1 April 2011 Further reduct:ions to the main rate are

proposed to reduce the rate by 1 per cent per annum to 24 per cent by 1 Apnl 2014
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9 Taxation {continued)

Movement in the deferred tax asset 1s as follows

lo S:Z: Accelerated Share-
carry- capital based Total
forwards allowances payments
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
As at 30 November 2008 - - - -
Tax losses recognised through the income statement 2,300 - - 2,300
As at 29 November 2009 2,300 - - 2,300
Tax losses recogrnused through the income statement 5,000 - - 5,000
As at 28 November 2010 7,300 - - 7,300
The unrecognised deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses and accelerated capital allowances available at the
penod end is analysed below
Tax
losses Accelerated Share-
carry- capital based Total
forwards allowances payments
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 30 November 2008 75,117 14,609 611 90,337
Potentral mevement in the period
unrecognised through
- Income statement 1,793 2,725 (7 4,511
- Equity - - 177 177
As at 29 November 2009 76,910 17,334 781 95,025
Effect of change in UK corporation tax rate (2.596) (707) (6) (3.309)
Potential movement in the penod
unrecognised through
- Income statement (6,339) 2,459 (59) (3,939)
- Equity - - {(109) (109)
As at 28 November 2010 67,975 19,086 607 87,668
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10 Intangible assets - Computer software

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
£000 £'000
Cost
At the beginning of the penod 28,503 24114
Additions 717 294
Internal development costs capitalised 5,142 4,095
At the end of the pertod 34,362 28,503
Accumulated amortisation
At the beginning of the penod (21,819) {(17.076)
Charge for the period (4,474) (4,743)
At the end of the penod (26,293) (21,819}
Net book value
At the end of the period 8,069 6,684

The net book value of computer software held under finance leases is analysed below

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
£000 £'000
Cost 2,470 2,470
Accumulated amortisation (2,404) (2,113)
Net book value 66 357

The movement in cost includes assets of £nil (2009 £265,000) reclassified from owned assets to assets held under

finance lease following asset based financing arrangements

For the 52 weeks ended 28 November 2010, internal development costs capitalised were £5,142,000 (2009
£4,095,000) and represented approximately 88% (2009 93%) of expenditure on intangible assets and 15% (2009

18%) of total capital spend including property, plant and equipment
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures,
Land and fituings, Motor Total
buildings plant and vehicles
machinery
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 December 2008 30,457 107,983 24,122 162,562
Additions 4,944 8,896 4,802 18,642
Disposals (66) (4,401) (6,286) (10,753)
At 29 November 2009 35,335 112,478 22,638 170,451
Additions 3,079 15,348 10,723 29,150
Disposals (173) {1,483) (5,936) (7.592)
At 28 November 2010 ¢ 38,241 126,343 27,425 192,009
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 December 2008 {8.209) (49,170} {14,652) (72,031}
Charge for the peniod {1.511) {12,227} (4,127} (17,865}
Impaiment (92) {931) - (1,023)
Disposals 66 4,401 6,253 10,720
At 29 November 2009 (9,746) (57,927) (12,526) (80,199)
Charge for the penod {1,493) {13,151) (4,689) (19,333)
Impairment - (14) - {(14)
Disposals 149 1,483 5,936 7,568
At 28 November 2010 {11,090) (69,609) (11,279) (91,978)
Net book value
At 1 December 2008 22,248 58,813 9,470 90,531
At 29 November 2009 25,589 54,551 10,112 90,252
At 28 November 2010 27,151 56,734 16,146 100,031
*Cost includes capitalised interest of £147,000 (2009 E£147.,000)
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The net carmying value of land and bulldings compnses

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Freehold 11,274 9,645
Short leasehold - less than 50 years 15,877 15,944
27,151 25,589
The net book value of fixed assets held under finance leases are analysed below
Fixtures,
Land and fittings, Motor Total
buildings plant and vehicles
machinery
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 28 November 2010
Cost 26,509 57,685 26,455 110,649
Accumulated depreciation and impawment (10.632) {32,200) (10,618) {53,450)
Net book value 15,877 25,485 15,837 57,199
At 29 November 2009
Cost 25,459 55,869 20,872 102,200
Accumulated depreciation and imparrment (9.515) {26,332) {11.247) {47,094)
Net book value 15,944 29,537 9,625 55,106

The movement In cost includes assets of £2,119,000 (2009 £6,870,000) reclassified from owned assets to assets

held under finance lease follomng a number of asset based financing arrangements

The impairment charge for fixtures, fitings, plant and machinery in all financial periods 1s in respect of superseded
assets written off dunng the penod The charge against land and builldings in 2009 was in respect of Portacabins

written off as they were no longer fit for use

Included within property, plant and equipment is capital work-in-progress for land and buildings of £1,849,000 (2009

£nily and capital work-in-progress for fixtures, fittings, plant & machinery of £4,152,000 (2009 £39,000)

Property, plant and equipment with a net book value of £10 3 milhon (2009 £11 0 milhon) has been pledged as

secunty for the secured loans (Note 18)
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12 Available-for-sale financial asset

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Unlisted equity investment 395 395

The unhsted equity investment compnses a 25% interest in Paneltex Limited whose registered office 1s at Paneltex
House, Somerden Road, Hull, HUS 5PE This stake was acquired in June 2001 at a cost of £385,000 The
Company's 25% interest in Paneltex Limited has not been treated as an associated undertaking as the Company do
not have significant influence over Paneltex In arnving at this decision the Board has reviewed the condihions set out
n 1AS 28 “Investments in Associates” and concluded that despite the size of its holding it 1s unable to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of Paneltex due to the position of the majonty shareholder as Executive
Managing Director, the insigrificant size and arm’s length nature of the relationship between the Company and

Paneltex

The shares of Paneltex Limited are not quoted in an active market and therr fair value cannot be reliably measured
As such the investment in Paneltex 1s measured at cost less accumulated impairment

The Company does not intend to dispose of this Investment in the foreseeable future If the Company did intend to
dispose of this investment then the anticipated exit route would be the sale of shares to the existing shareholder or

ancther connected party of Paneltex Limited

Further details of the relationship with Paneltex Limited are included in Note 29

13 Inventories

28 November

29 November

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Goods for resale 11,113 8,270
Consumables 1,367 943
12,480 9,213

No security has been granted over inventones

14 Trade and other receivables

28 November

29 November

2010 2009

Notes £'000 £'000

Trade recewvables 7,190 5,896
Less provision for impairment of trade receivables (234) {189}
Net trade recevables 6,956 5,707
Other receivables 7,086 4,072
Prepayments 3,881 4,411
Amounts due from group undertakings 54,125 -
Accrued income 317 550
72,365 14,740

No secuniy has been granted over trade and other receivables
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14 Trade and other receivables {continued)

Included in other recewvables 1s £5,431,000 (2009 £3,058,000) due from suppliers in relation to suppler funded

promotional actrity

Amounts due from group undertakings are unsecured, bear interest at market related interest rates and are

repayable on demand

A reconciliation of the movement in the provision for impairment of trade and other receivables {excl prepayments) is

shown below

28 November 2010 29 November 2009
Gross Impairment Gross Imparrment
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Not past due 66,772 - 7,807 -
Past due 0-3 months 1,680 (96) 2,395 (47)
Past due 3-6 months 192 (86) 115 (26)
Past due over 6 months 74 (52) 201 {116}
14 68,718 (234) 10,518 (189)

The provisions account for trade receivables 1s used to record impairment losses unless the Company is satisfied that
no recovery of the amount owing 1s possible, at that point the amounts considered irecoverable are written off
against trade receivables directly Imparment losses are included within adrmimstrative expenses in the income

statement

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired amounted to £1,713,000 (2009 £2,522,000) and relate to a
number of supphers for whom there 1s no recent history of default The ageing analysis of these trade recevables s

as follows

28 November

29 November

2010 2009

Gross Gross

£'000 £000

Past due 0-3 months 1,585 2,348
Past due 3-6 months 106 89
Past due over 6 months 22 85
1,713 2,522

15 Cash and cash equivalents

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 9,211 13,157
Bank overdraft (141) (140)
9,070 13,017

The bank overdraft 1s repayable on demand and forms an integral part of the Company's cash management so is

included as a component of cash and cash equivalents

The Company renewed its bank overdraft facility of £5 mdlion wath Barclays Bank plc in January 2610 This facility

was cancelled in January 2011 {see Note 31)
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16 Trade and other payables

28 November

29 November

2010 2009

£000 £'000

Trade payables 34,547 33,839
Taxation and social security 3,851 3,130
Accruals 14,448 9,519
Amounts due to group undertakings 60,496 -
Deferred income 2,194 749
115,536 47,237

Amounts due to group undertakings are unsecured, non-interest beanng and are repayable on demand

Deferred income represents the value of delivery income recewed under the "Ocado Delivery Pass™ scheme allocated

to future penods

17 Borrowings and finance leases

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
Notes £'000 £'000
Current habilities
Borrowings 18 2,282 12,087
Oblgations under finance leases 19 16,485 19,669
18,767 31,756
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 18 9,774 42,658
Obligations under finance leases 19 45,573 45,651
55,347 88,309
Total borrowings and finance leases 74,114 120,065
18 Borrowings
Between
G one year two Over
Total years five
?:a?- andet:rg and five years
y Y years
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
As at 28 November 2010
Secured loans 11,919 2,145 3,718 6,056 -
Unsecured loans 137 137 - - -
Total borrowings 12,056 2,282 3.718 6,056 -
As at 29 November 2009
Secured loans 41,350 5,998 17,463 17,489 400
Unsecured loans 13,395 6,089 4,579 2,727 -
Total borrowings 54,745 12,087 22,042 20,216 400
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18 Borrowings (continued)

Secured loans

The Company entered into a loan of £8 0 million in May 2007 which 1s secured over certain wareghouse assets

Interest was charged at the cleanng bank's base rate plus 2 5% and was repayable in equal quarterly instalments |
commencing in May 2009 and ending in May 2014 In May 2009, after the first capital instaiment was paud, the

remaining capital instalments were deferred Repayments recommenced in August 2010 with equal instalments pard

quarterly ending February 2015 The interest rate was reset to the cleanng bank’s base rate plus 3 0% The carrying

amount of the loan at 28 November 2010 1s £7 1 milion (2009 £7 5 milhion)

The Company entered into a loan of £1 5 million in December 2006 which Is secured on a freehold property  Interest
15 charged at the cleanng bank's base rate plus 1 5% The loan i1s repayable in fixed quarterly instalments from
March 2007 with a final payment in December 2011 The camrying amount of the loan at 28 November 201015 £1 0
millien (2002 £1 1 million)

The Company entered into a loan of £1 5 milkon in February 2009 which 1s secured on a freehold property  Interest
1s charged at LIBOR plus 2 3% It 1s repayable in fixed quarterly instalments from May 2009 with a final payment in
February 2012 The carrying amount of the loan at 28 November 2010 ts £1 2 millon {2009 £1 4 millign)

The Company entered into a loan of £2 9 million in December 2009 which 1s secured on a freehold property Interest
Is charged at LIBOR plus 3 5% It 1s repayable in fixed quarterly instalments from Apnil 2010 with a final bullet
payment in December 2012 The carrying amount of the loan at 28 November 2010 1s £2 6 million (2009 Enil)

The Company entered into a loan of £20 0 million in December 2004 which was extended by a further £15 0 millicn in
February 2007 Interest was charged at LIBOR plus 6 0%, of which 2 0% was due biannually and 4 0% was
capitalised into the loan and 1s payable at the end of the loan term A repayment of £10 0 milhon was made in
November 2008 and the outstanding capital balance of £27 5 million (2009 £26 4 million) was repaid in August 2010
The loan was secured over certain warehouse assets, software and intellectual property

The Company entered into a loan of £5 0 million In September 2008 secured over certain warehouse assets,
software and intellectual property, initially repayable in instalments or in full on or before September 2009 The loan
was extended in September 2009 until January 2010 on the same terms, and thereafter on a month by month basis
The outstanding capital balance of £5 Q million {2009 £5 O million) was repaid In May 2010 Interest was charged at
LIBOR plus 2 8%

Unsecured loans

The Company entered mto an agreement in October 2009 to defer the payment of its iInsurance premium over ten
fixed monthly instalments Interest was charged at 7 2% with the final payment made in July 2010 The Company
entered into a new agreement in October 2010 to defer the payment of its insurance premum of over ten fixed
monthly instalments Interest 1s charged at 6 5% wath the final payment due in September 2011 The carrying
amount of the loan at 28 November 2010 1s £0 1 million (2009 £1 9 million)

The Company entered into a loan of £6 8 million in Apnl 2002 with the then landlord of the customer fuifilment centre
It1s repayable in fixed quarterly instatments with a final payment in March 2012 Interest was charged at 14 2% and

the Company had a nght to repay the loan without penalty at any time on six months’ natice  The outstanding capital
balance of £1 6 milhion (2009 £2 2 million) was repaid in September 2010

The Company entered into a Murabaha facility agreement in July 2009 to raise funds of £1¢ 0 milion It was
repayable in quarterly instalments from QOctober 2009 to July 2012 totalling £11 3 milhon It had been estmated that
this would supply the bank with an overall yield of 8 0% The outstanding capital balance of £6 9 million (2009 £9 3
million) was repaid in October 2010

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2010 Ocado Limited 39




Notes to the financial statements {continued)

19 Obligations under finance leases

28 November 29 November
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Obligations under finance leases due
Within one year 16,485 19,669
Between one and two years 16,121 16,392
Between two and five years 21,947 20,698
After five years 7,505 8,561
Total obligations under finance leases 62,058 65,320
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
Notes £'000 £000
Minimum lease payments due
Within one year 20,087 23,705
Between one and two years 18,576 19,180
Between two and five years 24,546 23,779
After five years 9,459 10,773
72,668 77,437
Less future finance charges (10,610) (12,117)
Present value of finance lease habihties 62,0658 65,320
Disclosed as
Current 17 16,485 19,669
Non-current 17 45,573 45,651
62,058 65,320

The existing finance lease arrangements entered into by the Company contain no restrictions concerning dividends,
additional debt and further leasing Furthermore, no matenal leasing arrangements exist relating to contingent rent
payable, renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses
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20 Provisions

Dilapidations Total
£'000 £'000
As at 30 November 2008 197 197
Charged/(credited) to the iIncome statement
- Additional provision 212 212
- Unused amounts reversed (3) (3)
- Used dunng the penod (40) (40)
As at 29 November 2009 366 366
Charged/(credited) to the income statement
- Additicnal provision 203 203
- Unused amounts reversed {1 (1)
- Used during the period {122) (122)
As at 28 November 2010 446 446

The dilapidations provision 1s based on the future expected repair costs required to restore the CFC and the leased
vans to therr fair condition at the end of their respective lease terms The CFC lease expires in 2032 Leases for vans

run for five years
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21 Denvative financial instruments

28 November 29 November
2010 2009
£000 £'000
Denvative asset
Denvative asset designated as at farr value through profit or loss
- Forward foreign exchange contracts (cash flow hedges) 472 -
Denvative iabiity
Derivative hability designated as at fair value through profit or loss
- Warrant agreements - 1,083

Forward foreign exchange contracts
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 28 November 2010 were
EUR 17 6 mulion (2009 EUR nit}

The hedged highly probable forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to occur at vanous
dates during the next 12 months Gains and losses recognised n the hedging reserve within other comprehensive
income were £818,000 {2009 £ nil) These gamns are recognised in the ncome statement in periods during which the
hedged forecast transaction affects the income statement, which for the purchase of property, plant and equipment,
15 over the useful hfe of the asset (three to 25 years}

Warrant agreements

In 2004, the Company 1ssued to Ranelagh Nominees (an &ffiliate of Lloyds Bank pic) and to Lloyds TSB Bank plc
warrants to subscribe for up to 5,611,200 ordinary shares at £1 80 per share Lloyds TSB Bank plc subsequently
transferred its warrants to Ranelagh Nommees Limited The warrants provide Ranelagh Nominees with the
opportunity to benefit in the equity upside of the Company On IPO the warrants were fair valued at £150,000, down
£933,000 from that previously recognised This decrease In fair value was due to the market pnce being lower on the
IPO than the expected market pnce per the inital valuation The outstanding dervative lability of £150,000 was
settled in cash
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22 Share capital and reserves

The movements in the called up share capital and share prenmium accounts are set out below

Convertible Convertible
O;?:g?g preference O;i' Qfg preference pr e?nhlﬁ::
shares shares
Notes number number £000 £'000 £'000
At 1 December 2008 1,302,690 2,474,220 13 25 281,649
Issue of ordinary shares 222,281 - 2 - 30,005
Ordinary shares 1ssue costs - - - - (945)
Allotted in respect of executive share .
ownership scherme 23(a) 788 ) . 67
Issue of convertible preference shares - 529 - - 60
At 29 November 2009 1,525,757 2,474,749 15 25 310,836
Alletted in respect of executive share .
ownership scheme 23(a) 6.635 ) ) 731
Allotted 1n respect of joint share ownership _ _
scheme 324,767 3 48,712
Cancellation of ordinary and preference
shares 22(a) (1.857,159) (2,474,749) (18) {25) -
issue of ordinary shares 22(a) 100 - - - -
At 28 November 2010 100 - - - 360,279

Convertible preference shares were convertible into the same number of ordinary shares, either at the option of the
holder or on the occurrence of certain trigger events, including a public bsting  The convertible preference shares
ranked pan passu with ordinary shares, with the exception that on return of assets on a liquidation, reduction of
capital or otherwise, the holders of the convertible preference shares shall be entitled n respect of therr preference
shares (in proportion to the number of such shares held by each of them) in prionty to all other shareholders, to the
surplus assets of the Company remaining after payment of its labilities, the subscnption price for their preference
shares together with a sum equal to any arrears of diidends declared calculated down to the date of the retum of
assets

On 9 February 2010 Ocado Group plc acquired the entire share capital of the Company As a result of this
transaction, the shareholders in the Company received shares in Ocado Group pic in direct proportion to their onginal
shareholdings in the Company Shareholders were 1ssued 100 shares in Ocado Group plc for every 1 share in the
Company The shares in Ocado Group plc have a nominal value of 2 pence each
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22 Share capital and reserves {continued)

The movements in reserves other than share premium are set out below

contrioutons Fa value
reserve
Notes £'000 £'000
Capital contnbutions
- Novation of dernivative hability in respect of warrants 1ssued by the 1126
Company '
- Capital contributions - Group share-based payment charge 23(a) 204
Farr value movement on denvative financial instrument 22(b) - 726
At 28 November 2010 1,330 726

{a) Scheme of Arrangement and Capital Reduction

On 9 February 2010, pursuant to a scheme of arrangement, all of the Company’s ordinary and convertible preference
shares were cancelled |mmediately thereafter, the Company 1ssued 100 ordinary shares to Ocado Group plc for £1
and in consideration of that and of the cancellation of the Company's ordinary and convertible preference shares,
Ocado Group plc issued 185,715,900 ordinary shares and 247,474,900 convertible preference shares on the basis of
100 ordinary and/or convertible preference shares for each of the Company's ordinary share and/or convertible
preference share held The effect of the scheme of arrangement was to replicate the shareholders’ register of the
Company at the Ocado Group plc level

(b) Other reserves
Other reserves consist of the capital contnbutions reserve and the fairr value reserve

The capital contnibutions reserve arose as a result of a Group equity settled share-based payment charge, In
accordance with IFRS 2 'Share-based payments’

The farr value reserve compnses gains and losses on the spot movement of the Company's cash flow hedges
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23 Share options and other equity instruments

The Group curmrently operates three employee share incentive schemes, namely the execulive share ownership
scheme (the “ESOS"), the joint share ownership scheme (the “JSQS") and the sharesave scheme

(a) Executive share ownership scheme

The Group's ESOS 15 an equity-settled share cption scheme approved by HMRC Options may also be granted
under the terms of a schedule, which 1s not so approved The ESOS was estabhshed by Ocado in 2001

Under the ESOS, Ocado or the trustees of an employee trust may grant options over shares in Ocado Group plc to
eligible employees of the Company The eligible employees to whom options are granted and the terms of such
options will be determined by the Directors of Ocado or the trustees The employees who are elgible to participate in
the ESOS are all Ocado’s Executive Directors and employees Options are not transferable

The exercise pnce of options may not be less than the market value of the Company’s shares on the date of grant If
the trustees or the Directors have determined that the exercise of an option will be satisfied by the 1ssue of ordinary
shares, the exercise price may also not be less than the norminal value of ordinary shares

The directors of Ocado or trustees may impose a performance target and any further condition determined to be
appropriate on the exercise of an option Any performance target must generally be measured over a penod of at
least three years There are currently no options granted which are subject to performance targets that have not yet
been met

The vesting period for the ESOS Is three years  If the options remain unexercised after a penod of 10 years from the
date of grant or the employee feaves the Company, the options expire {subject to a imited number of exceptions)

On 9 February 2010 the ordinary shares and convertible preference shares in the Company were converted into
ordinary shares and convertible preference shares in Qcado Group plc on a 1 100 basis with a par value of 2 pence
per share Current period opening balance, movements dunng the penod and options outstanding at the end of the
penod have been disclosed as if the conversion occurred at the beginning of the penod

At each respective balance sheet date the outstanding options were as follows

e e ety N P Exercise Period
Approved 2001 593,725 080 13,940 80 01/04/03 - 29/11/11
2001 17,744 090 268 90  30/11/04 - 20/11/11
2002 128181 090 4104 90  31/05/05 - 20/11/12
2003 120,053 090 2,127 90  31/05/06 - 29/11/13
2004 183,426 090 3,147 90 31/05/07 - 29/11/44
2005 367,789 100 6,599 100 31/05/08 - 20/11/15
2005 70,170 115 944 115 31/05/08 - 30/05/15
2006 138,890 140 1,918 140 31/05/09 - 30/05/16
2006 115,028 150 1,627 150 30/11/09 - 2911116
2007 587,939 150 6,768 150 31/05/10 - 2011117
2008 225,578 135 2,721 135 301111 - 2011118
2008 445,751 120 5,661 120 31/05/11 - 30/05/18
2009 240,554 120 3,519 120 31/05/12 - 30/05/119
2009 1,354,121 135 18,100 135 0214/12 - 201119
2010 1,151,593 165 ; - 30/06/13 - 20/06/20
Total approved 5,740,542 71,443 |

options
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23 Share options and other equity instruments {continued)

{a) Executive share ownership scheme (continued)

Year
Y v oo Zownte Dem g o

Non-approved 2004 46,563 080 1,004 80 21/08/03 - 2911/11
2001 35,856 090 777 90 30/11/04 - 2911111
2002 56,787 090 1,243 90  31/05/05 - 20/11/12
2002 175,000 100 3,500 100 07/02/05 - 30/05/12
2002 350,000 150 3,500 150 07/02/05 - 30/05/12
2003 100,000 090 2,000 90 30/11/06 - 29M11/13
2005 754 100 19 100 30/11/08 - 20/11/15
2005 808.236 115 12,242 115 16/05/08 - 2011115
2007 50,833 150 508 150 31/05/10 - 30/05/17
2009 267,500 120 9,369 120 31/05/12 - 30/05/19
2009 24,074 138 241 135 16/11/12 - 1511/19

I::f;::ap"m‘"’d 1,915,603 34.493

I:z‘:::;“p'wee 7,656,145 105,936

Of the total employee share options above, the following options were subject to performance cntena in relation to

the average contnbution by basket and EBITDA

Year
28 November Exercise 29 November  Exercise
oy 2010 Price (£) 2009  Price (£) Exercise Period
ssue
2005 170,670 115 2,913 115 31/05/08 - 30/05/15
2009 254,000 120 9,550 120 31/05/12 - 30/05/19
Total options subject to 424,670 12,463

performance critena

Details of the movement in the number of share options outstanding dunng each financial perod are as follows

28 November 2010

29 November 2009

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

share average share average

options price (£) options pnce (£)

Cutstanding at the beginning of the penod 10,593,611 115 79,922 110
Granted dunng the penod 1,313,929 165 33,164 129
Forfeited dunng the penod (2,554,974) 112 (6,364) 126
Exercised dunng the penod (1.696,421) 102 (786) 85
Outstanding at the end of the period 7,656,145 127 105,936 115
Exercisable at the end of the period 3,662,300 111 57,422 100

The market value of Ocado Group plc's shares was denved based on the market value of similar companies and by

taking into account transactions with shareholders during the penod

The Share Valuation Office of the Inland

Revenue has confirmed in correspondence that in respect of options granted the exercise pnce per share was not
less than the market value of the Company's shares at each option grant date
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23 Share options and other equity instruments (continued)

{a) Executive share ownership scheme (continued)

In determining the fair value of the share options, the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model was used with the following

nputs
28 November 29 November
2010 2009
Weighted average share price £147 £126 60
Weghted average exercise pnce £127 £11478
Expected volatiity 025 050
Weighted expected life 300 419
Risk-free interest rate 3 5% 50%
Expected dividend yield 00% 0 0%

Expected volatiity was determined by comparing the Company to others of a similar size or which operate in similar
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restnctions, and behavioural considerations All share awards are equity settled The

charge to the income statement 15 detalled in Note 7

The weighted average remaining contractual lives for outstanding share options under the ESOS are as follows

28 November 2010 29 November 2009
Weighted Waeighted
Ver:
e emanng  Demee b manng
contractual Iife contractual life
(years) (years)
080 640,288 10 80 15,035 20
090 642,047 30 a0 13,666 38
100 543,543 38 100 10,118 46
115 878,406 45 115 13,186 55
120 953,805 84 120 18,549 95
135 1,603,773 89 135 21,062 99
140 138,890 55 140 1,918 65
150 1,103,800 51 150 12,403 62
165 1,151,593 96 - - -
7,656,145 105,936
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23 Share options and other equity instruments (continued}

{b) Joint share ownership scheme

The set up of the Group’s joint share ownership scheme (the “JSOS") was approved by a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 13 January 2010 following recommendations made by the Company's Remuneration Commuttee that a
new executive incentive scheme be established to ncentivise and retain its four Executive Directors and select
members of senior management of the Group (the “Participants”) The scheme was approved by the shareholders by
written resolution on 18 February 2010 The terms of the JSOS have been approved by the Company’s
Remuneration Commitiee who will supervise the operation of the scheme

Participants

Following consultation with the Company’s lawyers, financial advisers and independent executive remuneration
consultants and the Board of Directors’ approval, awards were granted to the Executive Board and a select group of
senior management In total they acquired interests in 32 5 million ordinary shares with an issue price of £1 50 per
share {histoncally the maximum share price recorded for the Company's shares)

Nature of interests

Interests will take the form of a restncted interest in ordinary shares in the Company (“Interest”) An Interest permits

a participant to benefit from the increase {(If any) in the value of a number of ardinary shares in the Company

{"Shares"} over which the Interest 1s acquired In order to acquire an Interest, a participant must enter into a joint ;
share ownership agreement with the trustees of an employee benefit trust under which the participant and the trustee
jointly acquire the shares and agree that when the shares are sold the participant has a nght to receive a proportion

of the sale proceeds In so far as the value of the shares exceeds a threshold amount For the imtial Interests

acquired by the Participants, there are four tranches each with their own threshold or Hurdle Value as follows

T Voong  Twe  xaor
1(2011) 01/01/2014 £17250 115%
2(2012) 01/01/2012 £1 9075 127%
3(2013) 01/01/2013 £2 0829 139%
4 (2014) 01/01/2014 £2 2813 152%

A participant is required to provide up front funding to the employee benefit trust equal to 2% of the 1ssue pnce on the
acquisition of their interests, amounting to £0 03 per share (the “Entry Price™) When an Interest vests, the trustees
will transfer shares to the participant of equal value tc the participant’s Interest or the Shares will be sold and the
trustee will account to the participant for the balance 1 e the difference between the sale proceeds (less expenses)
and the Hurdle Value

Vesting conditions

The vesting of the Interests granted to Participants are subject to a time vesting condition with one-guarter of the
Interest in the Shares vesting on the first anniversary of their acquisition, one-quarter on the second annwersary,
one-guarter on the third anniversary and the final one-quarter on the fourth anniversary

The farr value of the Interests awarded under the JSOS was determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model As per IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments', market based vesting conditions and the share price target
conditions in the JSOS have been taken in to account in establishing the farr value of the equity instruments granted
Other non-market or performance related conditions were not taken into account in establishing the fair value of
equity instruments granted, instead these non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments included in the measurement of the transactron amount so that, ulimately the amount
recognised for services receved as consideration for the equity instruments granted 1s based on the number of equity
instruments that will eventually vest The following inputs were used in the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4

Weighted average share price £135 £135 £135 £135
Weighted average exercise price £173 £1580 £2 08 £228
Expected volatiity 025 025 025 025
Weighted Expected life 091 191 291 3o
Risk-free interest rate 35% 35% 35% 35%
Expected dividend yield 00% 00% 00% 00%

Expected volatiity was determined by companing the Company to others of a ssmilar size or which operate in a similar
ndustry
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23 Share options and other equity instruments (continued)

(c) Non-employee share options

Options to subscnbe for ordinary shares and convertible preference shares have been granted by the Company to
non-employees These options are equity-settled, and do not have any vesting cntena

On 9 February 2010 the ordinary shares and convertible preference shares in the Company were converted into
ordinary shares and convertible preference shares in Ocado Group pic on a 1 100 basis with a par value of 2 pence
per share

At each respective balance sheet date the outstanding non-employee options were as follows

Date
e Pweiy  BerosePenod
Non-employee share options  Feb-02 - - 943 53 07/02/02 - 06/02/12
Feb-02 7,400 090 74 90  04/02/04 - 03/02/14
Feb-02 886,700 090 8,867 a0 04/02/02 - 04/02/17
Jan-04 435,300 103 4,353 103 03/01/04 - 03/01/18
Apr-04 - - 477 103 30/04/04 - 29/05/14
1,329,400 14,714

Details of the movement in the number of non-employee share options dunng each period are as follows

28 Novernber 2010 29 November 2009
Number of Waeighted Numbﬁ; Weighted
share average average
options price (£) share price (£)

options
Outstanding at the beginning of the penod 1,471,400 092 14,714 92
Granted dunng the penod - - - -
Forfeited duning the penod - - - -
Exercised dunng the period (142,000) 070 - -
Outstanding at the end of the penod 1,329,400 095 14,714 92
Exercisable at the end of the penod 1,329,400 095 14,714 92

Ccado Group plc documented an option to Hawkeye Capital Partners Limited on 21 June 2010 to subscnbe for
38,700 ordinary shares at a price of £1 03 per share This option was granted by the Company to Hawkeye Capital
Partners Limited for investor introduction services performed by it n 2003 These options were exercised on IPO at a
weighted average pnice of £1 03 The weighted average remaining contractual lives for the outstanding non-
employee share options are as follows

28 November 2010 29 November 2009

Weighted Weighted

Exercise Number of re?:aelflgg Exercise Number of r eﬁ;ﬁg;

price (£) share options contractual ife price (£) share options contractual life

{years}) (years)

090 894,100 62 53 00 943 22

103 435,300 79 90 42 8,941 72

- - - 103 37 4,830 81
1,329,400 14,714
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23 Share options and other equity instruments (continued)

(d) Sharesave Scheme

On 30 September 2010 the Group launched the Ocado Group Sharesave Scheme This 1s an HMRC approved
scheme and Is open to any person that was an employee or officer of the Group at the launch date Under the

scheme, members save a fixed amount each month for three years At the end of the three year period they are
entitied to use these savings to buy shares in Ocado Group plc at a pnce equal to 85% of the market value of the

shares at the launch date

At 28 November 2010 employees held 819 contracts in respect of options over 2,724,513 shares A reconciliation of
the Ocado Group Sharesave Scherme option movements 1s shown below

52 weeks ended

28 November 2010

N”mbg; Weighted

share average

oplions price (£)

Outstanding at the beginning of the penod - -
Granted dunng the period 2,728,850 116
Forfeited - granted in the penod (4.337) 116
Outstanding at the end of the perod 2,724 513 116

Exercisable at the end of the penod

In deterrmining the fair value of the share options, the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model was used with the following

Inputs
28 November
2010
Weighted average share price £137
Weighted average exercise price £116
Expected volatility 025
Weighted expected life 300
Risk-free interest rate 3 5%
Expected dividend yield 00%

Expected volatiity was determined by companng the Company to others of a similar size or which operate \n a similar

industry
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24 Financial instruments

(a) Fair value of financial instruments

The farr values of financial instruments are measured by using the following fair value hierarchy

« Quoted priced (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities (level 1)

« Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset and hability, either

directly or indirectly (level 2)

= Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 1s unobservable inputs)

(level 3}

The farr values of short-term deposits, receivables, overdrafts, payables and loans of a matunty of less than one

financial penod are assumed to approximate to their carrying values but for completeness are included in this

analysis

The dernvative asset at the end of the current period relates to forward foreign exchange contracts, the fair value of
which was determined with reference to the forward rate to the date of matunty for ali outstanding forward fereign
exchange contracts at penod end This denvative asset 15 categonsed as level 2

In the prior perod the Group recogrused a dervative hability in respect of warrants 1ssued The farr value was

determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Mode!, and it was categonsed as level 3

The Group's only avallable-for-sale financial asset consists of an unlisted equity investment of which the farr value
cannot be reliably determined This Investment has been categonised as level 3 There has been no movement in

this investment during the penod

The interest rate used to discount borrowings 1s based on a LIBOR plus margin measure blended for the type of
security offered and was calculated as 5 0% (2009 6 4%), and 1s classified as level 2

The fair values of all other financial assets and liabihties have been calculated by discounting the expected future

cash flows at prevailing market interest rates, and are classified as level 2

Set out below 1s a companson by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all financial instruments that are

included in the financial statements

28 November 2010 29 November 2009
Carrying Carrying
alue Fair value value Far value
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivafents 15 9,070 9,070 13,017 13,017
Trade receivables 14 6,956 6,956 5,707 5,707
Other recevables (incl accrued
income, exci prepayments) 14 7,403 7.403 4,622 4,622
Amounts due from group undertakings 14 54,125 54,125 - -
Derwvative asset 21 472 472 - -
Available-for-sale financial asset 12 395 395 395 395
Total financial assels 78,421 78,421 23,741 23,741
Financial habilities
Trade payables 16 {34,547) (34,547) (33,839) {33,839)
Accruals 16 {14,448) (14,448) (9.519) (9.519)
Amounts due to group undertakings 16 {60,496) (60,496) - -
Borrowings 18 (12,056) (11,739) {54,745) (55,075)
Finance lease obligations 19 {62,058) (62,058) (65,320} {65,320)
Derivative liability 21 - - (1,083) (1,083)
Total finangal liabiities {183.605) (183.288) (164,506) (164,836)
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24 Financial instruments (continued)

{b) Credit nsk

The Group's exposures to credit nsk anse from holdings of cash and cash equivalents and frade and other
recewvables (excluding prepayments}

Exposure to credit nsk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company’s exposure to credit nsk on cash and cash equivalents 1s managed by only opening and maintaining
transactional bank accounts and term deposits with banks and financial institutions which carry a Moody's rating of
Aa3/P1 for long-term and short-term deposits and Iimiting the amounts that can be deposited with any one such bank
or financial institution

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables at the period end compnse mainly montes due from suppliers, which 1s considered of a
good credit quality The Company provides for doubtful receivables in respect of monies due from suppliers

The Company has very low retaill credit nsk due to transactions being principally of a high volume, low value and
short matunity, and the Company’s effective controls over this area The Company has provided for doubtful
recevables in respect of consumer sales by reviewing the ageing profile and, based on prior expenence, assessing
the recoverability of overdue balances

Movements in the provision for the impairment of trade and other receivables are as follows

28 November 29 November

2010 2009

Notes £'000 £'000

Al the beginming of the pertod (189) (219)
Prowvision for impairment of receivables (304) (115)
Uncollectible amounts written off 217 114
Recovery of amounts previously provided 42 31
At the end of the penod 14 {234) {189)

The provisions account for trade receivables 1s used to record impairment losses unless the Company 1s satisfied that
no recovery of the amount owing 1s possible, at that point, the amounts considered irrecoverable are wntten off
against trade recewvables directly
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24 Financial instruments {continued)

{e) Liquidity risk

To manage the working capital needs of the business, the Company 1s reliant on being able to negotiate sufficient
financing arrangements To achieve this, the Company maintams a mixture of short- and medium-term debt and
lease finance arrangements that are designed to ensure it has sufficient avallable funds to finance its operatons  In
additon, dunng the penod the Company maintained a commutted standby bank overdraft facifity of £5 million (2009
£5 milion) After the penod end this overdraft facility was cancelled and replaced with a Group composite account
facility with the requirement that the aggregate of favourable cash balances offset adverse cash balances, with a limit
of £5 million adverse balance on any one account within the Group .
The Company monitors roling forecasts of the Company’s iquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all
times so that the Company does not breach borrowing imits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its barrowing
facilities For further details see Note 25

The table below analyses the Company’s non-denvative financial liabilities into relevant matunty groupings based on
the remaining penod at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturnity date  The amounts disclosed in the table
are the carrying values and undiscounted contractual cash flows

Notes Carrying Contractual 1 year 1-2 2-5 Tr?:r:
value cash flows or less years years 5 years
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-dernvative

financial habilities

Trade

payables 16 (34,547) (34,547} {34,547) - - -
Accruals 16 {14,448} (14,448) (14,448) - - -
Amounts due

to group 16 {60,496) {60,496) (60,496) - - -
undertakings

;::Z‘::;rea 18 (11,919) (12,891) (2,580) (4,033) (6,278) -
Unsecured

loans 18 (137 (141) (141) - - -
Obhgations

under

finance 19 (62,058) (72,668) (20,087) (18,576) (24,546) {9,459}
leases

28 November 2010 (183’605) (195,191) “32-29‘; (22,609) 30,824) (9,459)
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24 Financial instruments (continued)

{c) Liguidity nsk {continued)

Moo Carrying ContractuaI 1 year 122 2.5 ":':;:
value cash flows or less years years 5 years
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Non-denvative financial

habilities

Trade payables 16 {33,839) (33,839) (33,839) - - -
Accruals 16 (9.519) {9,519) (9,519) - - -
Secured loans 18 (41,350) {45,185) (7.517) (19,428) (17.837) (403)
Wnsecured 18 (13,395) (14,959) (7,047) (5,075) (2,837) ;
Obligations

under finance 19 {65,320) (77,437) (23,705) (19.180) (23,779) {10,773)
leases

29 November 2009 (163,423) (180.939) (81.627) (43,683) (44,453) {11,176)

At the end of the pnor penod the Company had a denvative hability in the form of warrants to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the Company with a fair value of £1,083,000 outstanding (see Note 21) The nature of these warrants does

not allow for a matunty profile to be calculated due to the uncertain timing of it being exercised  These warrants

were revalued and eventually settled the current penod

{d) Market nsk
Currency risk

The Cempany has foreign currency exposure in relation to its trade payables, a portion of its cash and cash

equivalents and denvative financial instruments m the form of forward foreign exchange contracts

Foreign currency trade payables anse principally on purchases of plant and equipment, whilst Euro bank accounts
are maintained in order to mintmise the Company's exposure to fluctuations in the Euro relaling to current and future
purchases of plant and equipment Forward foreign exchange contracts are entered into in order to hedge future
purchases of Euro

The Company's exposure to currency rnisk 1s based on the following amounts

28 November 29 November

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Cash and cash equivalents - Euro 5,186 -
Trade payables at penod end

Euro 1,254 41

US dollar - 2

Denvative asset (forward foreign exchange contracts) - Euro 472 -

6,912 43

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2010 Ocado Limited 54




Notes to the financial statements (continued)

24 Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Market nsk (continued)
Currency nisk {continued)

The table below shows the Company's sensitivity to changes in foreign exchange rates on its Euro-related financial

instruments
28 November 2010 29 November 2009
Increase / Increase / Increase / Increase f
{decrease) (decrease) {decrease) (decrease)
N INncome in equity nincome In equity
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
10% appreciation of the Euro 744 1,453 5 -
10% depreciation of the Euro (719) (1,324) () -

A strengthening of the Euro, as indicated, against sterling at 28 November 2010 would have increased/(decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts detaled above This analysis 1s based on foreign currency exchange rate
vanances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the pertod The analysis assumes

that all other vanables remain constant

Interest rate nsk

The Company s exposed to interest rate nsk on its interest bearing borrowings, amounts due to and from group
undertakings and floating rate cash and cash equivalents The Company's interest rate rnisk policy seeks to minimise
finance charges and volatility by structunng the interest rate profile into a diversified portfolio of fixed rate and floating

rate financial assets and habiities

At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments was

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
Notes £000 £'000
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 58,732 7.779
Financial habibties (62,195) (78,715)
Varnable rate instruments
Financial assets 10,466 5,238
Financial habilities (17,943) {41,350)

Sensitivity analysis

An increase of 100 basis points (1 0%) in nterest rates at the batance sheet date will increase equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below 100 basis points was deemed an appropnalte rate, considenng the current short-
term interest rate outiook This calculation assumes that the change occurred at the balance sheet date and had
been applied to nsk exposures existing at that date  This analysis assumes that all other vanables remain constant

and considers the effect on financial Instruments with vanable interest rates

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Equity
Gain/(loss) (93) {492)
Income
Gain/{loss) {93) (492)
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24 Financial instruments (continued)

(e} Financial instruments by category
The Company has categonsed is financial instruments as follows

Financial
Frnancial liabilities at
Available- Logsz hzbibties at fairr value Total
for-sale recewvables amortised through
v cost profit and
loss
Notes £'000 £'000 £:000 £'000 £'000
As at 28 November 2010
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15 - 9,070 - - 9,070
Trade and other
recevables {excluding 14 - 68,484 - - 68,484
prepayments)
Available-for-sale financial
asset 12 395 - - - 395
Dernvative asset 21 - - - 472 472
Total 395 77.554 - 472 78,421
Financial habihties
Trade payables 16 - - 34,547 - 34,547
Accruals 16 - - 14,448 - 14,448
Amounts due to group B _
undertakings 16 - 60,496 60,496
Borrowings 18 - - 12,056 - 12,056
Obligations under finance
leases 19 - - 62,058 62,058
Total - - 183,605 - 183,605
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24 Financaial instruments (continued)

{e) Financial instruments by category (continued)

Financial
Finanaial habilities at
Available- Loans llabilities at fair value
and Total
for-sale receivables amortised through
cost profit and
loss
Notes £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 29 November 2009
Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 15 - 13,017 - - 13,017
Trade and other
receivables {excluding 14 - 10,329 - - 10,329
prepayments)
Avallable-for-sale
financial asset 12 395 - ) ) 395
Total 395 23,346 - - 23,741
Financial liabtlities
Trade payables 16 - - 33,839 - 33,839
Accruals 16 - - 9,519 - 9,519
Borrowings 18 - - 54,745 - 54,745
Obligations under
finance leases 19 - - 65,320 - 65,320
Derwvative hability 2 - - - 1,083 1,083
Total - - 163,423 1,083 164,506

25 Capital management

The Board’s objective 1s to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concermn and sustain future
development of the business, prowviding returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders through an
appropnate balance of debt and equity financing

The Board's policy is to keep borrowings within existing facilities and to negotiate and obtain additional resources
required to fund the Company's working capital requirements for the foreseeable future

The Board closely manages its trading capital, which it defines as its net assets plus net debt Net debt s calculated
as total debt (borrowings and finance leases as shown in the balance sheet), less and cash and cash equivalents
The Company has performance based loan covenants in place over certain faciites Management monitors the
performance targets on a penod basis considenng actual and forecast results and they maintain constant
communication with all of the Company’s Lenders Throughout the year the Company has comphed wth all
covenants imposed by those Lenders The main areas of capital management revolve around the management of
the components of working capital including monitoring stock turn, age of stock, age of debtors, debtor days, creditor
days, balance sheet re-forecasting, penod projected loss, weekly cash flow forecasts, and dally cash balances

Major investment decisions are based on reviewing the expected future cash flows and all major capital expenditure
requires approval from the Board There were nc major changes in the Company’s approach to capital management
duning the penod
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25 Capital management (continued)

At the balance sheet date the Company’s performance in remainung within its borrowing facilites, including standby
overdraft facilihes, as measured by the headroom available was as follows

28 November 29 November

2010 2009

Nctes £'000 £'000

Total facilities available 191,373 137,775
Facilities drawn down 17 (74,114} {120,065}
Undrawn facihties at end of pertod 117,259 17.710
Cash and cash equivalents gross of drawn overdraft faciity 15 9,211 13,157
Total undrawn facilibes and cash available at the end of the penod 126,470 30,867

26 Subsidianes

The Company's only fully-owned subsidiary Jalapeno Partners Limited 1s a2 dormant company registered in England
and Wales

27 Commitments

Capital commitments
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided in the financial statements are as follows

28 November 29 November

2010 2009

£000 £'000

Land and bulldings 21,392 -
Property, plant and equipment 13,661 5,636
Total capital expenditure commutted at the end of the period 35,053 5,636

The land and bulldings cormmitment relates to the purchase of the land on which CFC2 will be built This purchase
was completed in March 2011 by one of the Ocado group companies

Operating lease commitments
The Company leases a number of offices, faciiies and equipment under non-cancellable operating leases The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts

At 28 November 2040 the future aggregate mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows

28 November 29 November

2010 2009

£000 £'000

Within one year 2,480 2,535
Greater than one year but less than five years 8,434 8,399
After five years 35,024 36,392
Total commitment 45,938 47,326
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28 Contingent habilities

The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims ansing in the ordinary course of business, all of

which the Company expects to be covered by its professional indemnity insurance These tegal claims are not

matenal to these financial statements

29 Related party transactions

Key management personnel

Only the Executive and Non-Executive Directors are deemed to be key management personnel |t 15 the Directors

who have responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the actvities of the Company Remuneration of

Directors 1s disclosed in the Note 7

Other related party transactions with key management personnel made dunng the penod are as follows

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
£000 £'000
Purchase of goods
- Company of a close family member of an Executive Director 42 116
Purchase of professional services
- Non-Executive Directors 30 48
72 164

All transactions are on an am's length basis and noc period end balances have ansen as a result of these

transactions

At the end of the perod key management did not owe the Company any amounts (2009 £4,000) in respect of
personal expenses incurred on the Company credit card that were reimbursed in the normal course of business The

prior penod balances were repaid in the ¢urrent period

There were no other matenal transactions or balances between the Cormpany and its key management personnel or

members of their close family

Investment

The Company holds a 25% interest in Paneltex Limited whose registered office 1s at Paneltex House, Somerden
Road, Hull, HU9 5PE The Company’s interest in Paneltex Limited has not been treated as an associated

undertaking as it does not have significant infiuence over Paneltex Limited

The following transactions were carried out with Paneltex Limited

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Sale of goods
- Plant and machinery 94 -
Total sale of goods 94 -
Purchase of goods
- Plant and machinery 220 289
- Consumables 143 160
Total purchase of goods 363 449
Amounts (receivable) / payable at the end of the penod (93) 19
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30 Analysis of net debt
{a) Net debt

28 Novernber

29 November

2010 2009
Notes £'000 £'000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15 9,070 13,017
9,070 13,017
Current habilities
Amounts due to group undertakings 16 (48,372) -
Borrowings 18 (2,282) (12,087)
Obligations under finance leases 19 (16,485) (19,669)
(67,139) (31,7586)
Non current habihttes
Borrowings 18 (9.774) (42,658)
Obligations under finance leases 19 (45,573) (45,651)
{55,347) (88,309)
Total debt {113,416) (107,048)

{b) Reconcihation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

28 November

29 November

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,947) 7,160
Net cash outflow from debt and lease financing 8,058 6,467
Non-cash movements
Exercise of convertible loan notes to equity - 60
Fair value movements on convertible loan notes - (176)
Assets acquired under finance lease (10,479) (4,826)
(Increase)/decrease in net debt in the period (6,368) 8,685
Opening net debt (107,048} (115,733)
Closing net debt (113,416) (107,048)

31 Post balance sheet events

In January 2011 the Group cancelled the bank overdraft facility of Ocado Limited and replaced it with a Group
composite account facility with a gross imit of £5 milion and net irmit of £nit - Certain of the Company’s bank

accounts form part of this facility

In January 2011 the Company agreed an extension of £4 2 million to a credit facility with an existing lender for vehicle

financing

In February 2011 the Company completed the purchase of land in Wimbtedon, London which will serve as the site for

a new Spoke servicing South-West London

In March 2011 the Company completed the purchase of the land in Dordon, Warwmckshire on which CFC2 will be

buit
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